
TOWN OF BROCK

C O M M I S S I O N  M E E T I N G

A G E N D A  P A C K E T

OCTOBER 20, 2025



N O T I C E  O F  M E E T I N G

THE TOWN COMMISSION OF BROCK, TEXAS

MAYOR BEN DAVIS
COMMISSIONER DEBBIE SCRIMSHIRE
COMMISSIONER CODY NELSON
ATTORNEY WHITT L. WYATT

MEETING DATE AND TIME:
MONDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2025

MEETING LOCATION:
BROCK COMMUNITY CENTER
2115 FM 1189
BROCK, TX 76087

R E G U L A R  A G E N D A
BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M.

Unless specifically noted otherwise, action may be taken on any item listed below.

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM
? INVOCATION BY PASTOR GREG BOWMAN, BROCK BAPTIST CHURCH
? PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCES
? CONSENT AGENDA: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered

routine by the Town Commission and will be enacted by one motion with no
individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be
pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

3.1 Review and Approve
(a) September 22, 2025, Meeting Minutes
(b)  September 30,  2025,?, Meeting Minutes

3.2 Review Monthly Financial Reports

3.3 Review Town of Brock accounts payable

1. Learn to Live- monthly rent for Town of Brock office $700.00 (OCTOBER RENT)
2. Wyatt Hamilton Findlay invoice #246 $5,456.25
3. TJH Accounting- invoice #2492 $75.00
4. BMY (2023 Financial Audit) invoice #252959 $3,175.50



5. CHI -Weatherford Democrat (Public Notice #136412) $60.00
6. CHI- Weatherford Democrat (Public Notice #132765 $74.00
7. CNHI-Weatherford Democrat (Public Notice #132770) $64.40
8. CNHI-Weatherford Democrat (Public Notice #132770 $64.40
9. Nextlink (phone service) $90.78
10. Provenance Solutions - Town Hall security deposit $500.00
11. Provenance Solutions - Town Hall lease November 2025/October 2026 $1,710.00
12. Parker County PCT 3 (Tree Trimming/Summer Stone) $1,812.11

?REGULAR AGENDA: Discussion and Possible action of the following

4.1 Brock citizen Gil Blackburn to discuss plans Spur FM 1189 project

4.2 ARPA/Brock Water/Wastewater study plan project update from Provenance
Engineering (PE) Kent Riker

4.3 Brock business owner John King to discuss offsite sign located at The Spot on
FM1189

4 . 4  R h y o l i t e  R e s o u r c e s  L L C  t o  p r e s e n t  b u s i n e s s  d e v e l o p m e n t  t o  b e  l o c a t e d  o n

Q u a n a h  H i l l

4.5 Farmers & Merchants Bank, President Jeff Stewart to present bank plans to be
located on the corner of Spur FM 1189 and Quanah Hill

4.6 Review and take action on the following permit applications:
(a) Saddlerock Safaris- sign permit

4.7 PUBLIC HEARING to consider approval of an ordinance providing health
inspections within the Town of Brock

4.8 Resolution allowing the Town Administrator to procure and pay expenses related
to IT services; and providing an effective date.

4.9 Resolution cancelling the general municipal election to be held on November 4,
2025; declaring the unopposed candidates for Mayor and City Commission elected
to office; directing clerk to post notice at each polling place; and providing an
effective date.

4.10 Future meet ing i tems and date

R E P O R T S :

Final report on financial audit from BMY from the Town Administrator
CITIZEN COMMENTS: The public may address the Commission regarding any
item. Persons desiring to address the Commission must register on the sign-in sheet
prior to the start of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes.

Limited reply by the Commission is allowed under The Texas Open Meetings Act as
follows: (a) If, at a meeting of a governmental body, a member of the public or of the



governmental body inquiries about a subject for which notice has not been given as
required by this subchapter, the notice provisions of this subchapter do not apply to:
(1) A statement of specific factual information given in response: or (2) A recitation of
existing policy in response: (b) Any deliberation of or decision about the subject of
the inquiry shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on the agenda for a
subsequent meeting.

? EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Commission reserves the right to adjourn into
executive session at any time during the meeting to discuss any of the matters
listed on the agenda, as authorized by Texas Government Code Section
551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY.

8 .  A D J O U R N

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the above notice of the meeting was posted on or
before October 14, 2025, prior to 6:30 P.M. at the Brock Community Center, 2115
FM 1189 Brock, Texas 76087 and at the Brock Town Hall 2451 FM 1189, Brock
Texas 76087.

M e l a n i e  M a t h e u s
T o w n  A d m i n i s t r a t o r

A c c e s s i b i l i t y  S t a t e m e n t
In compliance with the American Disabil i t ies Act, reasonable accommodations for

persons attending meeting wil l  be provided. To better serve you, requests should be
received 24 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the Town Administrator at 817-
396 -5333 .



TOWN OF BROCK
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

A G E N D A  I T E M  3 . 1

T i t l e
M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s

I tem Summary
Review and take action to approve the minutes from the following Town of Brock
Commission meetings
September 22,2025
September 30, 2025

Attachments
1. September 22, 2025, meeting minutes
2. September 30, 2025, meeting minutes



N O T I C E  O F  M E E T I N G

THE TOWN COMMISSION OF BROCK, TEXAS

MAYOR BEN DAVIS PRESENT
COMMISSIONER DEBBIE SCRIMSHIRE PRESENT
COMMISSIONER CODY NELSON PRESENT

ATTORNEY WHITT L. WYATT

MEETING DATE AND TIME:
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2025

MEETING LOCATION:
BROCK COMMUNITY CENTER
2115 FM 1189
BROCK, TX 76087

R E G U L A R  A G E N D A
BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M.

Unless specifically noted otherwise, action may be taken on any item listed below.

? CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM Mayor Ben Davis announced a
quorum and called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.

? INVOCATION AND PLEDGE Mayor Ben Davis led the community in prayer and
Pledges of Allegiance

? CONSENT AGENDA: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered
routine by the Town Commission and will be enacted by one motion with no
individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be
pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

3.1 Review and Approve
(a) August 18, 2025, Meet ing Minutes APPROVED

3.2 Review Monthly Financial Reports

3.3 Review Town of Brock accounts payable

1. Learn to Live- monthly rent for Town of Brock office $700.00 (SEPT RENT)
2. Wyatt Hamilton Findlay invoice #210 $3,543.75
3. TJH Accounting- invoice #2458 $75.00
4. Verdunity- invoice #132-01-08 $1, 107.50



3 . 2 ,

5. Bureau Veritas-project 2025-006574 (Brock Crossing) $12,417.84
6. Texas Municipal League- annual insurances- $1,009.75

Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made a motion to approve agenda items 3.1,

3.3, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

? REGULAR AGENDA: Discussion and Possib le act ion of  the fo l lowing

4.1 Brock citizen Gil Blackburn to discuss plans for Spur FM 1189 project
Mr. Blackburn requested this item to be tabled until the October Commission

meet ing

4.2 ARPA/Brock Water/Wastewater study plan project update from Provenance
Engineering (PE) Kent Riker
Kent Riker from PE updated the Commission that the plan study is wrapping
up. He informed the Commission of needed information for a potential water
district creation within Parker County. Information includes what the future
water needs would be as well as when water would be needed for the
community of Brock. He stated that the potential future water district could be
10-20 years in the future. He mentioned that the town had not explored a
possible, short-term water consideration which could include groundwater,
albeit a precious limited resource. He will present final findings and report at
the next meeting.

4.3 Review and take action to approve reimbursement requests to Parker County
for work done in July 2025 by Provenance Engineering

(A) PE Invoice # 007.23.01-14 $ 13, 550.00
Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made a motion to approve invoice
#007.23.01-14 for $13, 550.00, seconded by Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

4.4 Discuss findings of illegal dumping located at 1700 FM 1189
Mayor Ben Davis discussed the need to find an expert to determine the effects
of this illegal dumping. Commissioner Scrimshire stated she witnessed illegal
dumping therefore she called Parker County and FEMA, who told her that
dumping in a floodplain requires a FEMA permit. Mayor Ben Davis stated he
will call Parker County and then the Commission can rediscuss at the October
Commission meeting.

4.5 Review and take action to approve permit requests
1. Mama Veras- Mobile Food Vendor Application
Commissioner Cody Nelson made a motion to approve the Mama Veras

Mobi le
Food Vendor Application, seconded by Commissioner Debbie

Scr imshire.
Motion passed.
2. The Spot- sign permit - NOT APPROVED per Ordinance 2020-003



M a y o r

t h a t  t h e

e v e n t ( s ) .

4.6 Review and take action to approve Parker County estimate for Country Place
Road repairs
Commissioner Cody Nelson made a motion to approve the patching order for
$2,039.40, seconded by Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire. Motion passed. The
mayor stated he will reach out to PCT 3 for a third estimate.

4.7 Review and discuss Parker County Hospital District -EMS Station

4 Commercial Permit Application for station renovations
The Town Admin is t ra tor  s ta ted p lan rev iew payment  was recent ly  rece ived
therefore the p lans would be sent  to  Bureau Ver i tas for  o f f ic ia l  p lan rev iew
s e r v i c e s .

4.8 Discuss and take action regarding Town Hall annual lease
The Commission discussed the differences between the two lease options and
opted to relocate the office to 2491 FM 1189, Weatherford, Texas 76087 which
is also within the Brock Community. Commissioner Cody Nelson made a
motion to approve the relocation to 2491 FM 1189, seconded by Commissioner
Debbie Scrimshire as long as the town attorney reviews the lease contract.

The Commission then discussed the need for additional office furniture.
Commissioner Cody Nelson authorized the Town Administrator to purchase
office furniture no more than $2,000.00, seconded by Debbie Scrimshire.
Motion passed.

4.9 Discuss l ight pollution ordinance proposal
The Town of  Brock rece ived a few compla in ts  regard ing over ly  br ight  l ights
located at  1421 FM 1189 Brock,  Texas.  Per Mayor Ben Davis request ,  the Town
Admin is t ra tor  wi l l  ca l l  the shopping center  owner  to  request  a  change in  the
l igh ts  wh ich  w i l l  l ower  the  l igh t  po l lu t ion .  I f  needed,  the  Commiss ion  w i l l
rev is i t  the i tem at  a  fu ture Commiss ion meet ing.

4.10 Discuss and take action regarding Town of Brock oversight of future Brock
Hometown Chr istmas events
Hannah Conn i f f  approached the  Commiss ion to  request  the  Town o f  Brock
take  comple te  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  Brock  Hometown Chr is tmas as  the  BBC board
has  somewhat  d ismant led .  BHC has  been he ld  on  the  f i r s t  Sunday  o f
December s ince 2019 when i t  establ ished the event  as a fami ly  f r iendly
fundra iser  to  g ive  back  to  loca l  non-pro f i t  o rgan iza t ions .  A f te r  p resent ing
event  deta i ls  inc lud ing event  overv iew,  log is t ics ,  f inanc ia ls ,  market ing &
outreach,  what  worked wel l  a long wi th  the chal lenges,  as wel l  as event  needs,
the  Commiss ion  broke in to  Execut ive  Sess ion to  d iscuss  th is  w i th  the  Town

A t t o r n e y .
Af te r  consu l ta t ion  w i th  the  town a t to rney  dur ing  the  Execut ive  Sess ion ,  the

exp la ined  tha t  the  Town o f  B rock  suppor ts  B rock  Hometown Chr i s tmas  bu t

town cannot  accept  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  Brock  Hometown Chr is tmas

4.11 Future meeting items and date The Town of Brock Commission Meeting
was scheduled for Monday, October 20, 2025.



R E P O R T S :

Final report on financial audit from BMY from the Town Administrator
Tab led  un t i l  the  October  Commiss ion  meet ing

? CITIZEN COMMENTS: The publ ic may address the Commission regarding any
item. Persons desiring to address the Commission must register on the sign-in
sheet prior to the start of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3)

minutes.

Limited reply by the Commission is allowed under The Texas Open Meetings Act as
follows: (a) If, at a meeting of a governmental body, a member of the public or of the
governmental body inquiries about a subject for which notice has not been given as

required by this subchapter, the notice provisions of this subchapter do not apply to:
(1) A statement of specific factual information given in response: or (2) A recitation of
existing policy in response: (b) Any deliberation of or decision about the subject of
the inquiry shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on the agenda for a

subsequent meeting.

Brock Citizen Tanya Taylor thanked Mayor Ben Davis and Commissioner Cody
Nelson for stepping up to serve the community. Ms. Taylor recommended that
the Town of Brock Commission consider making Commission positions a part-
time, payable position to incentivize Brock citizens to run for office. The
Commission stated they will consider her recommendation.

? EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Commission reserves the right to adjourn into
executive session at any time during the meeting to discuss any of the
matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by Texas Government Code
Section 551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY.

Mayor Ben Davis made the motion to open the Executive Session at 7:17 P.M.,
seconded by Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire. Motion passed.

Discuss Town Hall office real estate needs

Mayor Ben Davis made the motion to close the Executive Session at 7:37 P.M,
seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

s e c o n d e d

8. ADJOURN

Mayor Ben Davis made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:27 P.M,

by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.



C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I hereby certify that the above notice of the meeting was posted on or
before Tuesday, September 16, 2025, prior to 6:30 P.M. at the Brock Community
Center, 2115 FM 1189 Brock, Texas 76087 and at the Brock Town Hall 2451 FM
1189, Brock Texas 76087.

Melanie Matheus
Town Administrator

Accessibi l i ty Statement
In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, reasonable accommodations for
persons attending meeting will be provided. To better serve you, requests should
be received 24 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the Town
Administrator at 817-396-5333.



N O T I C E  O F  M E E T I N G

THE TOWN COMMISSION OF BROCK, TEXAS

MAYOR BEN DAVIS
COMMISSIONER DEBBIE SCRIMSHIRE
COMMISSIONER CODY NELSON
ATTORNEY WHITT L. WYATT

MEETING DATE AND TIME:
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

MEETING LOCATION:
BROCK COMMUNITY CENTER
2115 FM 1189
BROCK, TX 76087

SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
BEGINS AT 4:00P.M.

Unless specifically noted otherwise, action may be taken on any item listed below.

, CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM
Mayor Ben Davis announced a quorum and called the meeting to order at 4:13pm

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
Mayor Ben Davis led the community in prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance

3. REGULAR AGENDA: Discussion and Possible action of the following

3.1 PUBLIC HEARING to consider approval of an ordinance Conditional Use Permit
for the sale of alcoholic beverages upon the premises located at 137 Olive Branch
Road, 140 Olive Branch Road, 219 Olive Branch Road, and 6021 Quanah Hill Road
in Brock, Texas.

Mayor Ben Davis made the motion to open the public hearing at 4:14pm,
seconded by Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire. Motion passed.

Mr. Ronnie Semler approached the Commission to request a Conditional Use
Permit for the Saddlerock Safaris mobile bar which will provide additional
access to alcoholic beverages when the venue is busy. Mr. Semler stated the

anticipated opening date for Saddlerock Safaris is tentatively set for
November 19, 2025. Commissioner Cody Nelson inquired about the operating
hours of the venue, in which Mr. Semler stated he was unsure but probably



10am-6pm. Mr. Semler added that the venue will initially provide safari tours
including animal interaction with wine offerings on the patio at the conclusion
of the safari tours. Future plans include lodging and a possible wedding
venue. No other public comments were made against the CUP approval.
Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made the motion to approve the Saddlerock
Safaris Conditional Use Permit, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson.
Motion approved unanimously 3-0.

Commiss ioner  Debbie  Scr imshi re  made the mot ion to  c lose the publ ic
hearing at

4:21 pm, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

3.2 PUBLIC HEARING to consider approval of an ordinance adopting the proposed
FY 25-26 budget.

Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made the motion to open the public hearing
a t 4:22pm, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

No public comments were made. Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made the
motion to approve the Fiscal Year 25-26 budget beginning October 1, 2025,
through September 30, 2026, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson.
Motion approved unanimously 3-0.

Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made the motion to close the public hearing
at 4:23pm, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

3.3 PUBLIC HEARING to consider approval an ordinance providing health
inspections

Mayor Ben Davis made the motion to open the public hearing at 4:24pm,
seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

Mayor Ben Davis stated the need for routine health inspection enforcement for
the Town of Brock. Commissioner Cody Nelson inquired about the related
costs for health inspections in which Mayor Ben Davis explained pass-through
fees would be paid for required inspections by Brock businesses. B r o c k
citizens verbally supported the proposed Ordinance.

Item was tabled until October 20, 2025, Commission meeting as the Ordinance
draft was not ready.

Commissioner Cody Nelson made the motion to table the Ordinance approval
until October 20, 2025, Commission meeting, seconded by Commissioner
Debbie Scrimshire. Motion unanimously approved 3-0.

REPORTS:

CITIZEN COMMENTS: The public may address the Commission regarding any item. Persons
desiring to address the Commission must register on the sign-in sheet prior to the start of the
meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes.



Limited reply by the Commission is allowed under The Texas Open Meetings Act as
follows: (a) If, at a meeting of a governmental body, a member of the public or of the
governmental body inquiries about a subject for which notice has not been given as
required by this subchapter, the notice provisions of this subchapter do not apply to:
(1) A statement of specific factual information given in response: or (2) A recitation of
existing policy in response: (b) Any deliberation of or decision about the subject of
the inquiry shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on the agenda for a
subsequent meeting.

N o  c i t i z e n  c o m m e n t s  w e r e  m a d e .

? EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Commission reserves the right to adjourn into
executive session at any time during the meeting to discuss any of the
matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by Texas Government Code
Section 551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY.

8.  ADJOURN
Commissioner Debbie Scrimshire made the motion to adjourn the meeting
at 4:28pm, seconded by Commissioner Cody Nelson. Motion passed.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the above notice of the meeting was posted on or
before Wednesday, September 24, 2025, prior to 6:30 P.M. at the Brock
Community Center, 2115 FM 1189 Brock, Texas 76087 and at the Brock Town
Hall 2451 FM 1189, Brock Texas 76087.

Melan ie  Matheus
Town Administrator

Accessibi l i ty Statement

In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, reasonable accommodations for
persons attending meeting will be provided. To better serve you, requests should
be received 24 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the Town
Administrator at 817-396-5333.



T O W N  O F  B R O C K

COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING
OCTOBER 20, 2025

A G E N D A  I T E M  3 . 2

T i t l e
Monthly Financial Reports

I tem Summary .
Review the following monthly financial reports
Public Funds Checking Account
First Financial EOM Report

Attachments
1. Public Funds Checking Account report
2. First Financial EOM report



Town of Brock - Public Funds Checking Account
07/01/2025-09/30/2025

Per  Bank Ac t iv i t y :

Beginning Balance (as of  July 1,  2025)

D e p o s i t s

Sales Tax Income

Franchise Tax Income

Permi t  Revenue

I n t e r e s t  D e p o s i t

D i s b u r s e m e n t s

ARPA Funding Release

Ending Balance (As of  July 31,  2025)

Beginning Balance (as of  August  1,  2025)

Depos i t s

Sa les  Tax Income

Franchise Tax Income

Permi t  Revenue

I n t e r e s t  D e p o s i t

D i s b u r s e m e n t s

ARPA Funding Release

Ending Balance (As of  August 29,  2025)

Beginning Balance (as of  September 1,  2025)

D e p o s i t s

Sales Tax Income

Franchise Tax Income

Perm i t  Revenue

In te res t  Depos i t

D i s b u r s e m e n t s

ARPA Funding Release

Ending Balance (As of  September 30,  2025)

$1,534,309.91
$51,217.25

$33,367.25

$ 1 5 7 . 8 7

$23,220.88

$17,850.00

$1,562,464.15

$1,562,464.15

$67,790.58

$37,342.59
$20,930.25
$8,134.59

$5,172.39

$28,310.76

$1,607,116.36

$1,607.116.36

$55,342.02

$54,147.43

$ 1 5 0 . 0 0

$4,692.67

$7,029.75

$1,660,121.30



T O W N  O F  B R O C K
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

A G E N D A  I T E M  3 . 3

T i t l e
Town of Brock Account Payables

I t e m  S u m m a r y

Rev iew the  fo l lowing account  payab les
L e a r n  t o  L i v e
Wya t t  Hami l t on  F ind lay
T J H  A c c o u n t i n g
B M Y
C N H I
C N H I
C N H I

N e x t l i n k
P r o v e n a n c e  S o l u t i o n s

P r o v e n a n c e  S o l u t i o n s
P a r k e r  C o u n t y  P C T  3

A t t a c h m e n t s
1. Learn to Live- (no invoice) $700.00
2. Wyatt Hamilton Findlay- invoice #246 $5,456.25
3. TJH Accounting $64.40-invoice #2492 $75.00
4. BMY- invoice # 292959 $3, 175.50
5 .  C H I -  $ 6 0 . 0 0
6 .  C H I - $ 7 4 . 0 0
7 .  CNHI -$64 .40
8.  CNHI-$64.40
9.  Next l ink-$90.78
10. Provenance Solutions- (no invoice) $500.00
11. Provenance Solutions -(no invoice) $1710.00
12. Parker County PCT 3- $1,812.11



WYATT

WHF HADLION

Wyatt Hamilton Findlay, PLLC

I n v o i c e  t o :

T o w n  o f  B r o c k

2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9

S u i t e  B

B r o c k ,  T e x a s  7 6 0 8 7

I N V O I C E

I n v o i c e  #  2 4 6
Da te :  09 /30 /2025

D u e  U p o n  R e c e i p t

I n v o i c e  N u m b e r

2 4 6

S u b t o t a l

T a x

A m o u n t  D u e

P a g e  1  o f  5

T o t a l

$5,456.25

$ 5 , 4 5 6 . 2 5

$ 0 . 0 0

$ 5 . 4 5 6 . 2 5



I N V O I C E

TJH Accounting

131 Coldwater Creek Ln

Weatherford, TX 76088

Teresa.Hand@TJHaccounting.com

+1 (817) 992-7054

B i l l  t o

T o w n  o f  B r o c k

2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9

B r o c k ,  T X  7 6 0 8 7

I n v o i c e  d e t a i l s

I n v o i c e  n o . :  2 4 9 2

T e r m s :  N e t  1 5

I n v o i c e  d a t e :  0 9 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 5

D u e  d a t e :  1 0 / 1 5 / 2 0 2 5

D a t e Product  or  serv ice D e s c r i p t i o n

1 . A c c o u n t i n g  S e r v i c e s S e p  P a y r o l l

W a y s  t o  p a y

V I S A

Thank you for your business! I accept credit card, ACH direct

deposit, and online payments.

V i e w  a n d  p a y

Ship to

T o w n  o f  B r o c k

2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9

Brock ,  TX  76087  USA

Q t y R a t e

$ 7 5 . 0 0

T o t a l

A m o u n t

$ 7 5 . 0 0

$ 7 5 . 0 0



B M Y
Certified Public Accountants
P O Box 203
Stephenville, TX 76401

Phone: (254) 965-7321 E-mail: mweber@bmy-ca.com Web: www.bmy-cpa.com

I n v o i c e :

D a t e :

I D :  9 8 0 3 7

2 5 2 9 5 9

0 9 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 5

Town of Brock

2451 FM 1189, Suite B
Brock, TX 76087

For professional service rendered as follows:

Assurance- Final Bill 2023 Audit
3,175.50

Bi l led  T ime & Expenses

I n v o i c e  T o t a l

$3,175.50

$3,175.50

09 /30 /2025

3 , 1 7 5 . 5 0

0 8 / 3 1 / 2 0 2 5
0 . 0 0

0 7 / 3 1 / 2 0 2 5

0 . 0 0

0 6 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 5
0 . 0 0

0 5 / 3 1 / 2 0 2 5 +
0 . 0 0

T o t a l

$3,175.50

Please return this portion with payment.

I D :  9 8 0 3 7

Town  o f  B rock

I n v o i c e :

D a t e :

V Code:

2 5 2 9 5 9

0 9 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 5

M a s t e r c a r d  o r  V i s a :

C a r d  #

Signature:

Exp Date:

A m o u n t  E n c l o s e d :  $

Due Upon Receipt. A finance charge will be added to invoices not paid
within 30 days from date of invoice.

A surcharge of 3% will be added to all credit card transactions.



C H I  N O R T H  T E X A S

ORDER CONFIRMATION

Salesperson: LEGALS (WEATHERFORD) P r i n t e d  a t  1 0 / 0 1 / 2 5  1 0 : 4 0  b y  b d a h n - b v

A c c t  # :  2 3 4 3 1 A d  # :  1 3 6 4 1 2 S t a t u s :  N e w

T O W N  O F  B R O C K
A L Y S S A  V A N E S I E R
2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9

W E A T H E R F O R D  T X  7 6 0 8 7

C o n t a c t :
P h o n e :

F a x # :
E m a i l :

A g e n c y :

S t a r t :  1 0 / 0 8 / 2 0 2 5 S t o p :  1 0 / 0 8 / 2 0 2 5
T i m e s  O r d :  1 T i m e s  R u n :*  *  *
1 0 L E G  2 . 0 0  X  1 . 4 5  W o r d s :  8 0
T o t a l  1 0 L E G  2 . 9 0
C l a s s :  J 1 0 5 P U B L I C  N O T I C E S
R a t e :  L E G A L C o s t :  6 0 . 0 0
#  A f f i d a v i t s :  1
A d  D e s c r p t :  P H  H E A L T H  I N S P E C T I O N S
D e s e r  C o n t :  N O T I C E  O F  P U B L I C  H E A R I N G

( 8 1 7 )  3 9 6 - 5 3 3 3 G i v e n  b y :

(000 )  000 -0000 P . O .  # :
m e l a n i e . a . m a t h e u s 2 @ g m a i l . c o m  C r e a t e d : b d a h n  1 0 / 0 1 / 2 5  1 0 : 3 6

L a s t  C h a n g e d :  b d a h n  1 0 / 0 1 / 2 5  1 0 : 4 0

P U B Z O N E E D T  T P  R U N  D A T E S

W D A 9 5  S  1 0 / 0 8
W D O L  A 9 4  S  1 0 / 0 8

A U T H O R I Z A T I O N

U n d e r  t h i s  a g r e e m e n t  r a t e s  a r e  s u b j e c t  t o  c h a n g e  w i t h  3 0  d a y s  n o t i c e . I n  t h e
e v e n t  o f  a  c a n c e l l a t i o n  b e f o r e  s c h e d u l e  c o m p l e t i o n ,  I  u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  t h e
r a t e  c h a r g e d  w i l l  b e  b a s e d  u p o n  t h e  r a t e  f o r  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  i n s e r t i o n s  u s e d .

Name (p r i n t  o r  t ype ) Name (signature)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

Notice is hereby given hat the Town Commission of The Town
of Brock, Texas will hold a Public Hearing to consider approval
of adopting an ordinance providing for health inspections. The
Commission meeting will be held on Monday, October 20, 2025
at  6:30pm at  the Brock Communi ty  Center .  2115 FM 1189
Brock TX 76087. Al l  interested persons may appear and be
heard. Please contact the Town Administrator at 817-396-5333
for additional information



C H I  N O R T H  T E X A S

O R D E R  C O N F I R M A T I O N

S a l e s p e r s o n :  L E G A L S  ( W E A T H E R F O R D )

- - - - - -

A c c t  # :  2 3 4 3 1

P r i n t e d  a t  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 6  b y  b d a h n - b v

A d  # :  1 3 2 7 6 5 S t a t u s :  N e w  W H O L D

T O W N  O F  B R O C K
A L Y S S A  V A N E S I E R
2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9

W E A T H E R F O R D  T X  7 6 0 8 7

C o n t a c t :
P h o n e :

F a x # :
E m a i l :

A g e n c y :

( 8 1 7 )  3 9 6 - 5 3 3 3
( 0 0 0 )  0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0
s a r a h w a l s h @ w h f l e g a l . c o m

S t a r t :  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 5 S t o p :  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 5
T i m e s  O r d :  1 T i m e s  R u n :  * *
1 0 L E G  2 . 0 0  X  1 . 8 0 W o r d s :  1 0 9
T o t a l  1 0 L E G  3 . 6 0
C l a s s :  J 1 0 5 P U B L I C  N O T I C E S

R a t e :  L E G A L C o s t :  7 4 . 0 0
#  A f f i d a v i t s :  1

A d  D e s c r p t :  P H  C U P  1 3 7  O L I V E  B R A N C H  R
D e s e r  C o n t :  N O T I C E  O F  P U B L I C  H E A R I N G

G i v e n  b y :
P . O .  # :
C r e a t e d : b d a h n  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 4
L a s t  C h a n g e d :  b d a h n  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 6

P U B Z O N E E D T  T P  S T A R T I N S
W D A 9 5  W  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5
W D O L  A 9 4  W  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5

S T O P S M T W T F S
1  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5 W S

1  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5  S M T W T F S

A U T H O R I Z A T I O N

U n d e r  t h i s  a g r e e m e n t  r a t e s  a r e  s u b j e c t  t o  c h a n g e  w i t h  3 0  d a y s  n o t i c e . I n  t h e
e v e n t  o f  a  c a n c e l l a t i o n  b e f o r e  s c h e d u l e  c o m p l e t i o n ,  I  u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  t h e
r a t e  c h a r g e d  w i l l  b e  b a s e d  u p o n  t h e  r a t e  f o r  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  i n s e r t i o n s  u s e d .

N a m e  ( p r i n t  o r  t y p e ) N a m e  ( s i g n a t u r e )

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Town Commission of The

approval Bran ordinance Conational use Pernitior'in€said or

alcoholic beverages upon the premises located at 137 Olive
Branch Road, 140 Olive Branch Road, 219 Olive Branch Road,
and 6021 Quanah Hill Road in Brock, Texas. The special-
called meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at
4:00pm at the Brock Community Center, 2115 FM 1189 Brock
TX 76087. All interested persons may appear and be heard.
Please contact the Town Administrator at 817-396-5333 for
additional information.



C H I  N O R T H  T E X A S

ORDER CONFIRMATION

Salesperson: LEGALS (WEATHERFORD) P r i n t e d  a t  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 2 1  b y  b d a h n - b v

A c c t  # :  2 3 4 3 1 A d  # :  1 3 2 7 7 0 Status: New WHOLD

T O W N  O F  B R O C K

A L Y S S A  V A N E S I E R
2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9
W E A T H E R F O R D  T X  7 6 0 8 7

C o n t a c t :
P h o n e :
F a x # :
E m a i l :
A g e n c y

( 8 1 7 )  3 9 6 - 5 3 3 3

( 0 0 0 )  0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0

s a r a h w a l s h @ w h f l e g a l . c o m

S t a r t :  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 5 S t o p :  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 5
T i m e s  O r d :  1 T i m e s  R u n :  * * *

1 0 L E G  2 . 0 0  X  1 . 5 6  W o r d s :  7 9
T o t a l  1 0 L E G  3 . 1 2
C l a s s :  J 1 0 5  P U B L I C  N O T I C E S
R a t e :  L E G A L C o s t :  6 4 . 4 0
#  A f f i d a v i t s :  1
A d  D e s c r p t :  P H  H E A L T H  I N S P E C T I O N S
D e s c r  C o n t :  N O T I C E  O F  P U B L I C  H E A R I N G
G i v e n  b y :  *

P . O .  # :
C r e a t e d : b d a h n  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 9
L a s t  C h a n g e d :  b a h n  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 2 1

P U B Z O N E

W D A

W D O L  A

E D T  T P  S T A R T I N S
9 5  W  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5

9 4  W  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5

S T O P S M T W T F S
1  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5 W S

1  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5  S M T W T F S

A U T H O R I Z A T I O N

U n d e r  t h i s  a g r e e m e n t  r a t e s  a r e  s u b j e c t  t o  c h a n g e  w i t h  3 0  d a y s  n o t i c e . I n  t h e
e v e n t  o f  a  c a n c e l l a t i o n  b e f o r e  s c h e d u l e  c o m p l e t i o n ,  I  u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  t h e
r a t e  c h a r g e d  w i l l  b e  b a s e d  u p o n  t h e  r a t e  f o r  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  i n s e r t i o n s  u s e d .

N a m e  ( p r i n t  o r  t y p e ) N a m e  ( s i g n a t u r e )

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Town Commission of The
Town of Brock, Texas wil l  hold a Public Hearing to consider
app rova l  o f  adop t i ng  an  o rd inance  p rov id ing  f o r  hea l t h
i nspec t i ons .  The  spec ia l - ca l l ed  mee t i ng  w i l l  be  he ld  on
T u e s d a y .  S e p t e m b e r  3 0 , 2 0 2 5  a t  4 : 0 0 p m  a t  t h e  B r o c k
Commun i t y  Cen te r ,  2115  FM 1189  B rock  TX  76087 .A l l
interested persons may appear and be heard. Please contact

t h e  T o w n  A d m i n i s t r a t o r  a t  8 1 7 - 3 9 6 - 5 3 3 3  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l
information.



C H I  N O R T H  T E X A S

ORDER CONFIRMATION

S a l e s p e r s o n :  L E G A L S  ( W E A T H E R F O R D ) P r i n t e d  a t  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 8  b y  b d a h n - b v

A c c t  # :  2 3 4 3 1 A d  # :  1 3 2 7 6 8 S t a t u s :  N e w  W H O L D

T O W N  O F  B R O C K

A L Y S S A  V A N E S I E R
2 4 5 1  F M  1 1 8 9
W E A T H E R F O R D  T X  7 6 0 8 7

C o n t a c t :

P h o n e :

F a x # :
E m a i l :
A g e n c y :

( 8 1 7 )  3 9 6 - 5 3 3 3
( 0 0 0 )  0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0
s a r a h w a l s h @ w h f l e g a l . c o m

S t a r t :  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 5 S t o p :  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 0 2 5
T i m e s  O r d :  1 T i m e s  R u n : * * *
1 0 L E G  2 . 0 0  X  1 . 5 6  W o r d s :  8 4
T o t a l  1 0 L E G  3 . 1 2
C l a s s :  J 1 0 5  P U B L I C  N O T I C E S
R a t e :  L E G A L C o s t :  6 4 . 4 0
#  A f f i d a v i t s :  1
A d  D e s c r p t :  P H  A D O P T  B U D G E T
D e s e r  C o n t :  N O T I C E  O F  P U B L I C  H E A R I N G
G i v e n  b y : *

P . O .  # :
C r e a t e d : b d a h n  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 7
L a s t  C h a n g e d :  b d a h n  0 9 / 1 8 / 2 5  1 3 : 1 8

P U B Z O N E  E D T  T P  S T A R T I N S

W D A 9 5  W  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5
W D O L  A 9 4  W  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5

S T O P S M T W T F S

1  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5 W S
1  S a t  0 9 / 2 0 / 2 5  S M T W T F S

A U T H O R I Z A T I O N

U n d e r  t h i s  a g r e e m e n t  r a t e s  a r e  s u b j e c t  t o  c h a n g e  w i t h  3 0  d a y s  n o t i c e . I n  t h e
e v e n t  o f  a  c a n c e l l a t i o n  b e f o r e  s c h e d u l e  c o m p l e t i o n ,  I  u n d e r s t a n d  t h a t  t h e

r a t e  c h a r g e d  w i l l  b e  b a s e d  u p o n  t h e  r a t e  f o r  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  i n s e r t i o n s  u s e d .

N a m e  ( p r i n t  o r  t y p e ) N a m e  ( s i g n a t u r e )

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Town Commission of The
Town of Brock, Texas will hold a Public Hearing at a special-
called meeting to consider approval of an ordinance adopting
the proposed FY 25-26 budget, The hearing will be held on
Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 4:00pm at the Brock
Community Center, 2115 FM 1189 Brock TX 76087. All
interested persons may appear and be heard. Please contact
the Town Administrator at 817-396-5333 for additional
information.



@ E X T L I N K
INTERNET MADE EASY

B I L L I N G  S T A T E M E N T

Melanie Matthews

City Of Brock
2451 FM 1189, STE B,
BROCK, TX 76087-5602

NextLink Internet
P.O. Box 224704
Dallas, TX 75222-4704
855-698-5465
www.nextlinkinternet.com

B i l l i n g  S t a t e m e n t  S u m m a r y

A c c o u n t

R e f e r e n c e

D a t e

B e g i n n i n g  B a l a n c e  ( $ )
A m o u n t  D u e  ( $ )

D u e  D a t e

L o g i n  t o  y o u r  a c c o u n t  o n l i n e  a t

n e x t l i n k i n t e r n e t . c o m / m y - a c c o u n t

1 2 5 1 9 9 0 0 3

Tr ia l  Bi l l ing Statement
1 0 / 0 7 / 2 0 2 5

9 0 . 7 8
9 0 . 7 8

1 1 / 0 6 / 2 0 2 5

TOTAL DUE 90.78

D O W N L O A D  T H E
N E X T L I N K  C O N N E C T  A P P

Manage your Nextlink account and internet service
all in one place!

Available on the GET IT ON

App Store Google Play

M E X T L I N K
CONENEFECT

L o o k s  g o o d !
Your network is online

(  M a n a c e

If you have a billing question, email us at billing@team.nxlink.com or call us at 855-698-5465.

Please tear off and return the bottom portion below with your check
to expedite the payment being applied to your account. Thank you.

Melanie Matthews
City Of Brock
2451 FM 1189
BROCK, TX 76087-5602

N E x T L I N K

INTERNET MADE EASY

NextLink Internet
P.O. Box 224704

Dallas, TX 75222-4704

P a y m e n t  S u m m a r y
A c c o u n t

Re fe rence

D u e  D a t e

A m o u n t  D u e  ( $ )

125199003
Trial Billing Statement

11/06/2025
90.78

Amount  Enc losed
C h e c k  N u m b e r

Please make checks payable to  NextL ink In ternet



P A R K E R  C O U N T Y  P R E C I N C T  # 3

Larry  Walden
1111 FM 1189

Weatherford, TX 76087
817-594-0371

October 1, 2025

Tree Trimming Summer Stone

Labor  -  $605 .52
Equipment - $1206.59
Total - $1812.11

This is the cost of trimming the trees on Summer Stone. Please remit
check to Parker County Precinct #3, 1111 FM 1189, Weatherford, TX
76087.

Thank  you ,

K i n t t a d i r
Kim Hardin
Office Manager

1111 FM 1189, Weatherford, TX 76087 ? 817-594-0371 ? 817-594-4496 (fax)
Email: larry.walden@parkercountytx.com



T O W N  O F  B R O C K
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4.1

T i t l e
Spur FM 1189 Project

I t e m  S u m m a r y
Brock citizen Gil Blacburn to discuss Spur FM 1189 project

A t t a c h m e n t s

1 .  n o n e



T O W N  O F  B R O C K

COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4 .2

T i t l e

Brock  Water /Wastewater  P lan  S tudy  Update

Item Summary
Provenance Engineer Kent Riker to update Commission on Brock Water/Wastewater Plan

Study

A t t a c h m e n t s

1 .  P E  t o  p r o v i d e



T O W N  O F  B R O C K

COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING
OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4.3

T i t l e
Off Site Sign Permit application appeal

Item Summary.
Brock business owner, John King, to discuss permit disapproval of the offsite sign
located at 110 Young Bend Road and FM 1189.

A t t a c h m e n t s

1 .  s i g n  p h o t o g r a p h





T O W N  O F  B R O C K
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

A G E N D A  I T E M  4 . 4

T i t l e
Business Development presentation by Rhyolite Resources LLC

Item Summary
Rhyolite Resources LLC to present business development including a plant nursery and
steakhouse to be located on Quanah Hill Road. No action can be taken by the
Commission until all supporting preliminary plat documents have been submitted to the
Town Administrator and a public hearing has been scheduled.

A t t a c h m e n t s
1. Prel iminary plat application



TOWN OF BROCK

APPLICATION FOR ZONING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT

T Y P E  O F  A P P L I C A T I O N :  ( C H E C K  A L L  T H A T  A P P L Y )

P L A T S Z O N I N G

| Prel iminary Plat ?  Zon ing  Change

?  F ina l  P la t ?  Cond i t i ona l  Use

P e r m i t

R e p l a t / A m e n d e d ?  P l a n n e d  D e v e l o p m e n t
P l a t

?  Subd iv is ion  var iance © Zoning Var iance

DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL

Preliminary Site Plan

?  S i t e  P l a n

?  O t h e r :

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Submittal Date: 10/13/2025 Address (if assigned): PENDING- QUANNAH HILL RD

Legal description of subject property (metes & bounds must be described on an attached sheet)

L o t  N u m b e r

Gross Acreage: 3.7

Number of  Lots: B l o c k Name of Addit ion

P r e s e n t  Z o n i n g  C l a s s i f i c a t i o n : #  o f  N e w  S t r e e t  I n t e r s e c t i o n s :1

P R O P E R T Y  O W N E R / A P P L I C A N T :

I hereby certify that the information in this application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

PROPERTY OWNER: (Required)

Name: (printed) RHYOLITE RESOURCES LLC

Address: PENDING- QUANNAH HILL RD

Contact: R. DEAN WILLIAMS

Phone:817-946-1158

City: BROCK State:TEXAS Email:info@riobrazosplants.com

76087
Zip:_

Signature:_R

1



APPLICANT: (If different from Owner)

Name: (printed)_ Westford Builders

11255 Camp Bowie West Blvd. Suite 105Address:

City: Aledo

Zip: 76008

S i g n a t u r e :

State:  TX

Contact: Tom L, Struhs

P h o n e :

E m a i l :

SURVEYOR: (Required)

Name: (printed)PRICE SURVEYING, LP, FIRM #10034200

Address:213 S OAK AVE

MINERAL WELLSCity: State: TEXAS

Zip: 76067

S i g n a t u r e :

Contact: PHILIP E. COLVIN, JR. R.P.L.S. # 6258

Phone: 940-325-4841

E m a i l :

ENGINEER: (If applicable)

Name: (printed)

A d d r e s s :

City :

Z i p :

S i g n a t u r e :

S t a t e :

C o n t a c t :

P h o n e :

E m a i l :

P R I N C I P A L  C O N T A C T :

(APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS WILL BE DISTRIBUTED ONLY TO DESIGNATED PRINCIPAL CONTACT)

O w n e r Applicant Surveyor Engineer

UTILITY PROVIDERS:
Electric Provider: Tr i -County  E lect r ic

Water Provider: Wel ls unt i l  City Water avai lable
Wastewater Provider: S e n t i c .
Gas Provider (if applicable): n / a

2



F E E S :
See Town of Brock Master Fee Schedule. All reasonable fees and/or costs, which are required by the

City of Brock for a proper review of this request, are the sole responsibility of the applicant. Such fees or
costs shall include, but are not limited to engineering reviews, legal opinions, building(s)/property

inspections and/or testing(s).

City Use Only

Project #: Completed Application Received on:

A f f i d a v i t  f o r  G r o u n d w a t e r  A v a i l a b i l i t y  R e c e i v e d  o n :

F e e s  C o l l e c t e d : R e c e i p t  # : P r o j e c t  # :



SIGNATURE TO AUTHORIZE PLAT/ZONING REQUEST

Bhyalite Resources, LLCApplicant's Name (Print): R . D .  S i l l ,  M e m b e r ,  M a r .
Applicant's Signature:

The State of /exas
County ofT a r r a n t
Before Me. Rachelle L. WhiteMs an eronimanennes.-R.D. Williams

(notary) (applicant)

known to me (or proved to me on the oath of card or other document) to be the person whose name is subscribed

to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and
consideration therein expressed.

(Seal) Given under my hand and seal of office this8 day of-Deloberno 202

Sockete ?????
Notary In and For State of Texas

R.D. SIM: Manbar, Mgr.
Property Owner's Signature:

RACHELLE L. WHITEMAN

My Notary ID # 5500601

Expires April 11, 2028

Khvorite Resurrees. LLE
Property Owner's Name (Print):

The State of lexas

county Tarrantcan reaches L. Whitenan near ammaneanedR . D  W i l l i a m s
'(property owner)

known to me (or proved to me on the oath of card or other document) to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he exécuted the same for the purposes and

consideration therein expressed.
(Seal) Given under my hand and seal of office thisS h e

P o m a n
RACHELLE L. WHITEMAN

My Notary ID # 5500601

Expires April 11, 2028
otary In and For State of Texas

4



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FOR PLAT AND ZONING APPLICATIONS

All Plat and Zoning applications, including Conditional Use Permits (CUPs), are subject to administrative

review for completeness. Only complete applications will be considered filed and eligible to be scheduled
for public hearing and consideration by the Town Commission.

All public hearings will be opened, and testimony given by applicants and all interested persons.

Any changes to a site plan (no matter how minor or major) approved in connection with a Conditional

Use Permit (CUP) are required to be approved by the Town Commission through the public hearing
process.

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE REQUIREMENTS AS SET FORTH BY THE APPLICATION FOR AND

ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND THAT ALL

REQUIREMENTS OF THIS APPLICATION HAVE BEEN MET AT THE TIME OF SUBMITTAL.

R  T
Applicant's SignatureSill: Member M

Brydite Resources, LLC
Applicant's Name (Print)

10/8/25
D a t e

Owner's Signature (If different) Date

Owner 's  Name (Pr int )



CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATION/SITE PLAN APPLICATION CHECKLIST
**This checklist must be submitted with the initial application**

I .  G E N E R A L :

Name of Addition:
Applicant:RHYOLITE RESOURCES LLC

Property Owner(s):RHYOLITE RESOURCES LLC

Location of Addition:

I. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATION/SITE PLAN APPLICATION

Application with original/notarized signatures of owner and applicant

Filing and publication fee (see Town of Brock Master Fee Schedule)

Site plan drawing showing the existing structures and proposed requested structure.

Drainage and elevations may be required.

Submit a letter describing the proposed Conditional use and note the request on the site plan

document, describe or show on the site plan special requirements or conditions imposed

upon the particular conditional use by applicable district regulations (example: buffer yards,

distance between users), describe whether the proposed conditional use will, or will not

cause substantial harm to the value, use, or enjoyment of other property in the
neighborhood.

6



PLAT REVIEW CHECKLIST

**This checklist must be submitted with the initial plat application**

I I .  G E N E R A L :

Name of Addition:
Applicant: RHYOLITE RESOURCES LLC

Property Owner(s):RHYOLITE RESOURCES LLC

Location of Addition:

I. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A PRELIMINARY PLAT
JAY Preliminary Plat Application (original signatures) /0|3|25

Preliminary Plat Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 digital)

Preliminary Drainage Analysis (5 paper copies & 1 digital)
Concept Construction Plan (5 paper copies & 1 digital)
Tree Survey

Location and Dimensions of Existing Structures
Sectionalizing or Phasing of Plats

_Zoning Classification of All Properties Shown on the Plat

Dimensions of all Proposed or Existing Lots

__Location of 100-year Flood Limits Where Applicable
_Underground water study

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study
requirement for plats with 10 lots or less)

III. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A FINAL PLAT

Final Plat Application (original signatures)

Final Plat Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 digital)

Drainage Study (5 paper copies & 1 digital)

Submit 1 mylar copy and 1 paper copy from county filing
Written Metes and Bounds Description

Dimensions of All Proposed or Existing Lots

Area in acres for each lot

Any Existing Structures which Encroach and Setback Lines

Parker County Tax Certificate

Plans for all water & sewer l ines

Plans for fire hydrants

Plans for all proposed streets and sidewalks

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study

requirement for plats with 10 lots or less) 7



IV. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A REPLAT
Replat Application (original signatures)

_Plat Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 digital)

Original Plat for comparison

Drainage Study (5 paper copies & 1 digital copy)

Submit 1 mylar copy and 1 paper copy from county filing

Written Metes and Bounds Description

Dimensions of All Proposed or Existing Lots

Area in acres for each lot

Any Existing Structures which Encroach and Setback Lines

Parker County Tax Certificate

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study

requirement for plats with 10 lots or less)

V .  R E Q U I R E D  D O C U M E N T S  F O R  A N  A M E N D E D  P L A T

Amended  P la t  App l i ca t i on  (o r i g i na l  s i gna tu res )

F ina l  P la t  Draw ing  (5  paper  cop ies  &  1  d ig i ta l )

O r i g i n a l  P l a t  f o r  c o m p a r i s o n

Dra inage  S tudy  (5  paper  cop ies  &  1  d ig i t a l  copy )

S u b m i t  1  m y l a r  c o p y  a n d  1  p a p e r  c o p y  f r o m  c o u n t y  f i l i n g

W r i t t e n  M e t e s  a n d  B o u n d s  D e s c r i p t i o n

D imens ions  o f  A l l  P roposed  o r  Ex is t i ng  Lo ts

Area  in  ac res  fo r  each  lo t

Any  Ex is t ing  S t ruc tu res  wh ich  Encroach  and Setback  L ines

A f f i d a v i t  f o r  G r o u n d w a t e r  A v a i l a b i l i t y  ( i f  a p p l y i n g  t o  w a i v e  t h e  g r o u n d w a t e r  s t u d y

r e q u i r e m e n t  f o r  p l a t s  w i t h  1 0  l o t s  o r  l e s s )

VI. REQUIREMENTS ON ALL PLATS

Adjacent Property Lines, Streets, Easements
Names of Owners of Property within 200 feet

Names of Adjoining Subdivisions

_Front and Rear Building Setback Lines

Side Setback Lines

City Boundaries Where Applicable

Date the Drawing was Prepared

Location, Width, Purpose of all Existing Easements

Location, Width, Purpose of all Proposed Easements

Consecutively Numbered or Lettered Lots and Blocks

Map Sheet Size of 18"× 24" to 24"× 36"

Nor th  A r row

Name, Address, Telephone of Property Owner

Name, Address, Telephone of Developer

Name, Address, Telephone of Surveyor

Seal of Registered Land Surveyor

Consecutively Numbered Plat Notes and Conditions

Town of Brock Plat Dedication Language

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study

requirement for plats with 10 lots or less)

8



Location and Dimensions of Public Use Area

Graphic Scale of Not Greater than 1" =200*

All Existing and Proposed Street Names
_Dimensions of All Existing and Proposed Right-of-way as Specified on Master Thoroughfare Plan

Subdivision Boundary in Bold Lines

_Subdivision Name
Title Block Identifying Plat Type

Key Map at 1" =200°

Surveyor's Certification of Compliance

Texas NAD83 State Plane Coordinates (Grid) (at least 2 comers)

Show relationship of plat to existing "water, sewage, and drainage.

VII. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED ON FINAL PLATS

A. A written and notarized statement describing the minimum Improvements which the subdivider

agrees to provide, conditional upon Town Commission approval of the final plat.

B.  A  w r i t t en  and  no ta r i zed  s ta temen t  t ha t  a l l  p rope r t y  t axes  and  assessmen ts  have  been  pa id  f o r  pas t

yea rs  and  up  t o  cu r ren t  da te .  Th i s  s t a temen t  sha l l  be  s i gned  by  t he  owne r  o r  owne rs  ( o r i g i na l  and

o n e  c o p y )

C. A written and notarized acknowledgement of the dedication to public use of streets, parks, water

courses, drains, easements and other such public places as shown on the plat, and of payments in

lieu of certain public dedications. Property designated for schools, churches, hospitals, municipal

purposes, and other uses, shall be noted, as well as the conditions and procedures by which such
property and monies shall be made available to prospective purchasers or governing bodies. This

statement shall be signed by the owner or owners, and all persons having a mortgage or lien

interest in the property (if applicable).

PLEASE NOTE:  A f te r  s ta f f  app rova l ,  add i t i ona l  paper  cop ies  may  be  requ i red  fo r  rev iew by  the  Town

C o m m i s s i o n .

T O W N  H A L L  C O N T A C T  I N F O R M A T I O N
Please direct questions to the Town Clerk: townclerk@brocktx.net or (817) 396-5333

Delivery and Correspondence Address (Please schedule an Appointment)

Town of Brock
2451 FM 1189 Ste B

Brock, TX. 76087

g



T O W N  O F  B R O C K
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4.5

T i t l e
Business Development presentation by Farmers & Merchants Bank

I t em Summary .
Farmers & Merchants Bank President, Jeff Stewart to present bank plans to be located
at the corner of Spur FM 1189 and Quanah Hill Road. No action can be taken by the
Commission until all supporting preliminary plat application documents have been
submitted to the Town Administrator and a public hearing has been scheduled.

A t t a c h m e n t s
1. Prel iminary plat  appl icat ion
2.  Prel iminary p lat
3. Page 1 of Preliminary Bank Plans



TOWN OF BROCK

APPLICATION FOR ZONING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT

PLATS

W Preliminary Plat

? FInal Plat

Q R e p l a t / A m e n d e d

P l a t

?  S u b d i v i s i o n  v a r i a n c e

Z O N I N G

© Zoning Change

O Condit ional Use

P e r m i t

? Planned Development

©  Z o n i n g  V a r i a n c e

DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL

?  P r e l i m i n a r y  S i t e  P l a n

?   S i t e  P l a n

?  O t h e r :

Submittal Date: 10/15/2025 Address (if assigned): pending with Parker County 911 Addressing

Legal  descr ip t ion of  sub ject  proper ty  (metes & bounds must  be descr ibed on an at tached sheet )

Lot Number Number of Lots: L Block MIA. Name of Addition Eagles Nest commecial
Gross Acreage: 2.0 Present Zoning Classification: GR Pant - Phase 2# of New Street Intersections:

I  hereby cer t i fy  that  the in format ion in  th is  app l ica t ion is  t rue and cor rect  to  the best  o f  my knowledge.

PROPERTY OWNER:  (Requ i red )

Name: (printed) Farmers and Merchants Bank

Address: 240 S. Texas St, Malling: PO Box 230

City: _De Leon

Z i p : 7 6 4 4 4

State:T X

Signature: Ass stevant

Contact: Jeff Stewart

Phone: 254-893-2031

Emai l :  jdstewart@imbank- lx .com

1



Name (erinted) Alteraal Hoffer
Address: 200 Bailey AVENUE Phone: 2173216729
ar.Fart wath state: TX

7 4 1 0 7

SURVEYOR: (Required)

Name: (printed)Phil ip E. Lolvin J r .

Address: 2 1 3  3  O a kAve
city: Mineral Wells State:T X
Zip: 26067

Contact: Philip Colvin
Phone: 940-325-4841
small_ philip@pricssurveying.com

ENGINEER: (If applicable)

Name: (printed)

A d d r e s s :

C i t y :

Z i p :

S i g n a t u r e :

S t a t e :

C o n t a c t :

P h o n e :

E m a i l :

x  O w n e r Appl icant Surveyor Engineer

UTILITY PROVIDERS:

Electric Provider:
Water Provider: well & Parker SUD
Wastewater Provider:

Gas Provider (if applicable):

2



See Town of Brock Master Fee Schedule. All reasonable fees and/or costs, which are required by the

City of Brock for a proper revlew of this request, are the sole responsibility of the applicant. Such fees or

costs shall include, but are not limited to engineering reviews, legal opinions, building(s)/property
inspections and/or testing(s).

City Use Only

Project #: Completed Application Received on:

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability Received on:

Fees Collected: Recelpt #: Project #:



Farmers & Merchants Bank

Applicant's Name (Print):

a n D s t i a n t

Applicant's Signature:

The State of Texas

County of Comanche

B e f o r e  M e  J o y c e  C l a r k
[notary)

on this day personally appeared J e s S  S t e w a s
(applicant)

known to me (or proved to me on the oath of card or other document) to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and
consideration therein expressed.

(Seal) Given under my hand and seal of office this I I day of Octuba, A.D. 2oUs.

JOYCE M CLARK
Notary Public, Slate of Toxas
My Commission ExolrasNOTARY ID 12605872-7 J u  a  c e n k

n and For State of Texas

F a r m e r s  &  M e r c h a n t s  B a n k

P r o p e r t y  O w n e r ' s  N a m e  ( P r i n t ) :

O U N D :
Property Owner's Signature:

t w a r t

The State of Texas

County of Comanche

Before Me Joyu Clark
(notary)

on this day personally appeared J e f f  s t e w a t

(property owner)

known to me (or proved to me on the oath of card or other document) to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and

consideration therein expressed,

(seal) Given under my hand and seal of office this /5 day f Scheber, A.D. 2015.

JOYCE M CLARK
Notary Publio, State of Texas
M y  C o m m i s s i o n  E x p l e s

March 30
NOTARY ID 12805872-7

Notaly y .  m e h n
and For State of Texas



All Plat and Zoning applications, including Conditional Use Permits (CUPs), are subject to administrative

review for completeness. Only complete opplications will be considered filed and eligible to be scheduled

for public hearing and consideration by the Town Commission.

All public hearings will be opened, and testimony given by applicants and all interested persons.

Any changes to a site plan (no matter how minor or major) approved in connection with a Conditional

Use Permit (CUP) are required to be approved by the Town Commission through the public hearing
process.

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE REQUIREMENTS AS SET FORTH BY THE APPLICATION FOR AND

ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND THAT ALL

REQUIREMENTS OF THIS APPLICATION HAVE BEEN MET AT THE TIME OF SUBMITTAL.

9AMD SE
Applicant's Signature

Jeff D. Stewart

Applicant's Name (Print)

10-15-25
D a t e

Owner's Signature (If different) D a t e

O w n e r ' s  N a m e  ( P r i n t )

5



1 .  G E N E R A L :

Name of Addition: commercial use building - not in addition

Applicant: Farmers & Merchants Bank

Property Owner(s):Farmers & Merchants Bank
Location of Addition: Quannah Hill & Brock Spur Intersection

I. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATION/SITE PLAN APPLICATION

Application with original/notarized signatures of owner and applicant

, Filing and publication fee (see Town of Brock Master Fee Schedule)
Site plan drawing showing the existing structures and proposed requested structure.
Drainage and elevations may be required.

_Submit a letter describing the proposed Conditional use and note the request on the site plan

document, describe or show on the site plan special requirements or conditions imposed
upon the particular conditional use by applicable district regulations (example: buffer yards,

distance between users), describe whether the proposed conditional use will, or will not

cause substantial harm to the value, use, or enjoyment of other property in the
neighborhood.



II. GENERAL:

Name o f  Ada l t i on :  Eag les  Nes t  Commerc ia l  Pa rk ,  Phase  2

A p p l i c a n t :  t i m e r s  a n d  M e r c h a n t s  B a n k
Property Owner(s):
Location of Addition: late-siction of Queach Hill + Bruck Spar

" REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A PRELMINARY ESTPreliminary Plat Application (original signatures) 10/15/2035

MY Preliminary Plat Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 digital) 9/25 | 2025
Preliminary Drainage Analysis (5 paper copies & 1 digital) 9/25/2.035
" Concept Construction Plan (5 paper copies & 1 digital) 10/9| 2025

_Tree Survey

MIA Location and Dimensions of Existing Structures

N A Sectionalizing or Phasing of Plats
Zoning Classification of All Properties Shown on the Plat
Dimensions of all Proposed or Existing Lots

MIA Location of 100-year Flood Limits Where Applicable

_Underground water study
Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study

requirement for plats with 10 lots or less)

III. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A FINAL PLAT

_Final Plat Application (original signatures)

Final Plat Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 digital)

Drainage Study (5 paper coples & 1 digital)

Submit 1 mylar copy and 1 paper copy from county filing

Written Metes and Bounds Description

Dimensions of All Proposed or Existing Lots

Area in acres for each lot

_Any Existing Structures which Encroach and Setback Lines
Parker County Tax Certificate

Plans for all water & sewer lines

Plans for fire hydrants

Plans for all proposed streets and sidewalks

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study

requirement for plats with 10 lots or less)
7



IV.  REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR A REPLAT

Repla t  App l ica t ion (or ig ina l  s ignatures)

Plat  Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 d ig i ta l )

Or ig ina l  P la t  f o r  compar i son

Drainage Study (5 paper copies & 1 digi tal  copy)

_Submit  1 mylar copy and 1 paper copy from county f i l ing

Wr i t ten  Metes  and Bounds  Descr ip t ion

Dimensions of  Al l  Proposed or Exist ing Lots

Area  in  ac res  fo r  each  lo t

_Any Exist ing Structures which Encroach and Setback Lines

Parker  County  Tax  Cer t i f i ca te

_Af f idav i t  for  Groundwater  Avai lab i l i ty  ( i f  apply ing to  waive the groundwater  s tudy

requ i rement  fo r  p la ts  w i th  10  lo ts  o r  less)

V. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR AN AMENDED PLAT

Amended Plat Application (original signatures)

Final Plat Drawing (5 paper copies & 1 digital)

Original Plat for comparison

_Drainage Study (5 paper copies & 1 digital copy)

_Submit 1 mylar copy and 1 paper copy from county filing

Written Metes and Bounds Description

Dimensions of All Proposed or Existing Lots

Area in acres for each lot

Any Existing Structures which Encroach and Setback Lines

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study

requirement for plats with 10 lots or less)

VI. REQUIREMENTS ON ALL PLATS

Adjacent Property Lines, Streets, Easements
Names of Owners of Property within 200 feet

Names of Adjoining Subdivisions

_Front and Rear Building Setback Lines

Side Setback Lines

City Boundaries Where Applicable

Date the Drawing was Prepared

_Location, Width, Purpose of all Existing Easements

Location, Width, Purpose of all Proposed Easements

Consecutively Numbered or Lettered Lots and Blocks

Map Sheet Size of 18"× 24" to 24'x 36"

Nor th  Ar row

_Name, Address, Telephone of Property Owner

_Name, Address, Telephone of Developer

_Name, Address, Telephone of Surveyor
Seal of Registered Land Surveyor

Consecutively Numbered Plat Notes and Conditions

Town of Brock Plat Dedication Language

Affidavit for Groundwater Availability (if applying to waive the groundwater study
renuirement for nlats with 10 lots or less)

8



Location and Dimensions of Public Use Area
Graphic Scale of Not Greater than 1" =200°

All Existing and Proposed Street Names

Dimensions of All Existing and Proposed Right-of-way as Specified on Master Thoroughfare Plan
_Subdivision Boundary in Bold Lines
Subdivision Name

_Title Block Identifying Plat Type
Key Map at 1" =200°

Survevor's Certification of Compliance

Texas NAD83 State Plane Coordinates (Grid) (at least 2 comers)

_Show relationship of plat to existing "water, sewage, and drainage."

VI. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED ON FINAL PLATS

A. A written and notarized statement describing the minimum Improvements which the subdivider

agrees to provide, conditional upon Town Commission approval of the final plat.

B. A written and notarized statement that all property taxes and assessments have been paid for past

years and up to current date. This statement shall be signed by the owner or owners (original and
one cop)

C. A written and notarized acknowledgement of the dedication to public use of streets, parks, water

courses, drains, easements and other such public places as shown on the plat, and of payments in

lieu of certain public dedications. Property designated for schools, churches, hospitals, municipal

purposes, and other uses, shall be noted, as well as the conditions and procedures by which such

property and monies shall be made available to prospective purchasers or governing bodies. This

statement shall be signed by the owner or owners, and all persons having a mortgage or lien

interest in the property (if applicable).

PLEASE NOTE: After staff approval, additional paper copies may be required for review by the Town
Commission.

Please direct questions to the Town Clerk: townclerk@brocktx.net or (817) 396-5333

Delivery and Correspondence Address (Please schedule an Appointment)
Town of  Brock

2451 FM 1189 Ste B

Brock, TX. 76087

g



S T A T E  O F  T E X A S

C O U N T Y  O F  P A R K E R

§

§

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Jess Stewart who,

after first being by me duly sworn, stated upon oath as follows:

1. My name is Jeff Stewart ? I am above the age of eighteen years, and I am fully

competent to make this affidavit. The facts stated in this affidavit are within my personal

knowledge and are true and correct.

2. I have submitted a plat application for the subdivision of a tract of land, being 10 lots or

less, for which the source of the water supply intended is groundwater. The purpose of the

subdivision of property is solely to rearrange lot lines, and no new development or structures are

proposed. No increase in water supply is needed and no new wells or water sources will be

required, as there is continued groundwater availability in the vicinity of the proposed subdivision.

3. I request the Town of Brock determine that sufficient groundwater is available and will

continue to be available to the subdivided tract of land and waive the groundwater study

requirement.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYTETH NOT.

AnD steward
A F F I A N T

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO BEFORB ME, the undersigned authority, on this the /5

day of Bc)ch, 2024. 5

?  m e e tNO FiST PUBLIC IN AND FOR

THE STATE OF TEXASJOYCE M CLARK

Notary Public, State of Toxas
My Commisalion Expires

March 30, 2027
NOTARY ID 12805872.7



L E G AAL  DESCRIPT ION

l a n d  o u t  o f  S e c t i o n  N o .  2 9 4 ,  T .  &  P .  R R .  C o .  S u r v e y  ( A . B .  G l o v e

P a r k e r  C o u n t y ,  T e x a s ;  b e i n g  p a r t  o t  a  c e r t a i n  1 1  a c r e s  t r a c t  d e s c r i b e d

c o r d i n g  t o  p l a t  r e c o r d e d  i n  C a b i n e t  b ,  S l i d e  6 1 5  o f  t h e

0 3  m i n .  S I  s e c .  c u r v e  t o  t h e  r i g h t  w i t h  a  r a d i u :

56 min. 18 sec. curve to the left with a radius

. 23 deg. 06 min. 49 sec. E.
line of said Brock Spur to a

t o  a  f o u n d  1 / 2 "  i r o n  r o d  w i t h  c a n  / P R I C E

S U R V E Y I N G )  a t  t h e  s o u t h w e s t  c o r n e r  o f  s a i d  2 . 0 0 0  a c r e s  t r a c t  f o r  a  c o m e r  o f  t h i s  t r a c t .

T h e n c e  N .  3 9  d e g .  1 7  m i n .  3 3  s e c .  W .  4 2 . 8 0  f e e t  a l o n g  t h e  w e s t  l i n e  o f  s a i d  2 . 0 0 0  a c r e s  t r a c t  t c

T h e n c e  S .  4 4  d e g .  3 5  m i n .  0 6  s e c . W .  1 8 2 . 7 7  f e e t  t o  a  s e t  1 / 2  i r o n  r o d  w i t h  c a p  ( P R I C E

S U R V E Y I N G )  f o r  t h e  s o u t h w e s t  c o r n e r  o f  t h i s  t r a c t .

S U R V E Y O R S  C E R T I F I C A T E

s u r v e y  o n  t h e  g r o u n d  a n d  t h a t  a l l  l o t  c o m e r s ,  a n g l e  p o i n t s ,  a n d  p o i n t s  o f  c u r v e s
a r e  p r o p e r l y  m a r k e d  o n  t h e  g r o u n d .  a n d  t h a t  t h i s  p l a t  c o r r e c t l y  r e p r e s e n t s  t h a

s u r v e y  m a d e  b y  m e  o r  u n d e r  m y  d i r e c t  s u p e r v i s i o n  o n  J U N E  3 0 .  2 0 2 5

P R E L I M I N A R Y ,  T H I S  D O C U M E N T  S H A L L  N O T  B E  R E C O R D E D  F O R  A N Y

P U R P O S E  A N D  S H A L L  N O T  B E  U S E D  O R  V I E W E D  O R  R E L I E D  U P O N  A S  A
C I N A L S Y D O C H I N E

Philip E. Colvin, Jr., R.P.L.S. No. 6258
JN25564 25564A.dwg 20720.crd FN250779

j' ROAD?

N 152434° V 22366

N O T E ,  A L L  D I S T A N C E S  A R E  S U R F A C E  D I S T A N C E !

NOTE THIS TRACT IS NOTIN A FLOOD ZONI
RDING TOFIRM. MAP NO.

DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008

NOTE SELLING A PORTIDIIN OF THIS ADDITION BY
METESAND BOUNDS5 IS A VIOLATION
REGULATION STATE LAWAND IS SUBJEC
TO FINES OR OTHER PENALTIES

NOTE THIS PLAT REPRESENTS PROPERTY

CATION PRESCRIBEDGOVERNMENT

BUYER
CODE, SECTION 232.0032

TO THE T

N O T E .  W A T E R  W I L L  B E  S U P P L I E D  B Y

D U  9 1 7 - 5 9 4 - 2 9 0 0

PATEL SEVES SERVICE YAH ON A SITE SEVERACILITIES SUBJECT
PARKFD COUNTY

NOTE THIS IRAGE, IS CURRENTLY ZONED

NOTS AT LEG TINE ADORE BS.
LANDOWNER'S DRIVEWAY SO THEY

NOTE THESE LOTS ARE SUBJECT TO TXDOT,
LATIONS REGARDING TE HARKETION DE

S C A L E 6 0  F E E T

6 0

TOWN OF BROCK
PARKER COUNTY, TEXAS

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE BY THE TOWN PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

ACCEPTED THIS DAY OF 2025,
BY THE TOWN PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

CHAIRMAN, Brock Planning and Zoning Commission

ATTEST,
'SECRETARY, Brock Planning and Zoning Commissi

F I L E D  F O R  R E C O R D

P A R K E R  C O U N T Y ,  T E X A S  P L A T  R E C O R D S

C A B I N E T _ _ .  S L I D E

D A T E

O W N E R ' S  C E R T I F I C A T E

T h a t  I ,  G I L D E N  B .  B L A C K B U R N

10 10

s a i d  o a t  a s  E A G L E S  N E S T  C O M M E R C I A

1 3 . 0 0 0  a e r o s  a r t  a  s e c t i o n  N o  g a s

P A R R I S O N S

d o  h e r e b y  c a r t y  t h a t  t h i s

EXECUTED THIS THE DAY OF

S E C T I O N  N O .  2 9 4
T O  P R R  C O  S U R V E Y

C A B .  G L O V E R  S U R V E Y >

A B S T P A C T  N O

B R O C K  S P U R

B r :  -
GILDEN B. BLACKBURN

STATE OF TEXAS

?  ( P A V E D > .

C O U N T I OR

B E F O R E  M E ,  t h e  u n d e r s i g

L O T  2
2 . 0 0 0  /

G i V E N

F A R M E R S A N D  M E R C H A N T S  B A T E

BUT LaTh

27064

S 623336° V

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

That I F & M BANK, the owner of the lan

- N  3 9 9 7 1 3 3 ?  W

4 2 . 8 0 D I S S U S S O R I N I S T I N E D A Y  O F

T O W N I O S  B R O C K

T E X A S

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE BY THE TOWN COMMISSION:

ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF BROCK:

BY: JEFF D. STEWART, PRESIDENT& CEO

S T A T E  O F  T E X A S

MAYOR, TOWN OF BROCK COUNTY OF

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in
this day personally appeared JEFF D. SIEWART

m e  u n d e r s i o n o d .  N o t a r  e v o l c  o n  t h e  s t a t e  o f  r a x a s -  h e r e o v

p l a t  o f  E A G L E ' S  N E S T  C O M M E R C I A L  P A R K ,  P H A S E  2 ,  a l
t h a t  t h e  f o r g o i n g  f i n a l

?  t h e  T o w n  c  o f  B r o c k ,

w a s  s u b m i t t e d  t o  t h e  T o w n  C o m m i s s i o n  o n  t h e

2 0 2 5 ,  a n d  t h e  T o w n  c o m m i s s i o n ,  b y  f o r m a l  a c t i o n  t h e n  a n d  t h e r e ,  a c c e p t e d  t h e  d e d i c a t i o n  o G I V E N  u n d e r  m y  h a n d  a n d

p l a t ,  a n d  s a i d  T o w n  C o m m i s s i o n  f u r t h e r  a u t h o r i z e d  t h e  m a v o r  t o  n o t e  t h e  a c c e p t a n c e  t

W I T N E S S  M Y  H A N D T H I S D A Y  O F . 2 0 2 5

TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

V I C I N I T Y  M A P
TO SCALE)

OWNER INFORMATION

GILDEN B.  BLACKBURN
8131 OLD BROCK ROAD

BROCK, 7 6 0 8 7
8 1 7 - 5 6 5 - 5 2 5 5

MERCHANTS BANKFATHESTEWARCH ARES DENT

C O U P S  T E X A S T
6 4 4 4

SURVEYOR

P H I L I P  E  C O L V I N ,  J R .
PRICE SURVEYING
F I R M  # 1 0 0 3 4 2 0 0

ITH OAK AVENUE

MINERALW E L L S , 7 6 0 6 7

PRELIMINARY PLAT
E A G L E S  N E S T

C O M M E R C I A L  P A R K

P H A S E  2

L O T  1  &  L O T  2

A SUBDIVISION OF 3.000
ACRES DUT OF SECTION NO.

294,  T .  8  P . RR. CO. SURVEY
CA.B. GLOVER SURVEY)

ABSTRACT NO. 2785
PARKER COUNTY,

PLAT DATE SEPTEMBER 25,



INDEX OF SHEETS

E E E E E

F a r m e r s  &  M e r c h a n t s  B a n k

C O N S T R U C T I O N  D O C U M E N T S  ( C D )

1 0 / 0 6 / 2 0 2 5

VICINITY MAP

Grace.  S tace

COVER

C V R



TOWN OF BROCK
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4.6

T i t l e

P e r m i t  A p p l i c a t i o n s

I t e m  S u m m a r y
Rev iew and take ac t ion  on the  fo l lowing permi t  app l ica t ions
S a d d l e r o c k  S a f a r i s -

A t t a c h m e n t s
1. Saddlerock Safaris sign permit application
2. Photographs/renderings of proposed signage



T o w n  o f
Brock, Texas Sign Permit Application

NOTICE: One application per sign is required. All blanks must be filled in for application to be complete.

Type o f  S ign :  ?  Temporary  5  Permanent

?  Po l i t i ca l  ?  Commerc ia l  ©  Rea l  Es ta te  O Construction O Special  Event

Address and location of Proposed Sign:137 Olive Branch Road, Brock TX 76087

Legal Description: Safari Wine Tour

Zoning Classification of Property: PD

Applicant: Saddlerock Vineyards & Safari O Owner © Agent

Appl icant 's  Address:  137 Ol ive Branch Road

City, State: Brock, TX Zip: 76087 Phone No. 682-367-5860

Email Address: francesca@saddlerocksafaris.com

Owner: 2012 RHS Children's Trust, 2012 LAS Children's Trust

2 1 9  O l i v e  B r a n c h  R o a d

w  O w n e r  ?  A g e n t

Owner 's Address:

City, State: Brock, TX Zip: 76087 Phone No. 817-771-3477

Email Address: ths@semlercompanies.com

Style of Sign: Monument Façade Hanging

The following must be submitted along with the completed petition before processing and scheduling:
1.) Two Maps. A ?" scaled location map clearly showing the placement of the proposed sign in relation to

adjacent streets and distance to adjacent streets and other signs on property
2.) 1/4" Scaled drawing of proposed sign w/dimensions of the front of the building
3. Description of materials used in construction of sign
4.) Filing Fee

M
Signature of Applicant: Date: 10/7/25

Signature of Owner: Date:

O F F I C E  U S E  O N L Y

Amount Due:Date completed application received:

Approval Signature:

OCT 0 9 2025

m a t t e r

Check #:

D a t e :

PHONE: (817) 396 - 5333
MAILING ADDRESS: 2451 FM 1189, Ste.B, Brock, TX 76087

EMAIL: townclerk@brocktx.net



24" From the fence

wide 8
night - 5

Jal 4 hight

S A D D L E R O C K
VINEYAROS E SAFARI

a p p l y  t o  f r a m e  w i t h  r e c l a i m e d

w o o d

S A D D L E R O C K
VINEYARDS & SAFARI

1 2 7 4

to ta l

b u i l d  w i t h  p r e s s u r e
t r e a t e d  w o o d





T O W N  O F  B R O C K
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4.7

T i t l e
Publ ic Hearing

I t e m  S u m m a r y
Public hearing to discuss and take action on approving an Ordinance providing health
inspections within the Town of Brock

A t t a c h m e n t s
1.  Ordinance NO. 0-2025-007



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-007

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS, REGULATING FOOD
ESTABLISHMENTS; ESTABLISHING FEES FOR PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS;
PROVIDING A SUSPENSION AND HEARING PROCEDURE; ESTABLISHING A
MAXIMUM $2,000 FINE OR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF FOR NONCOMPLIANCE;
PROVIDING A REPEALING AND SAVINGS CLAUSE, SEVERABILITY CLAUSE,
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 437 of the Texas Health and Safety Code provides the authority for municipalities
to regulate and inspect food service establishments, retail food stores, mobile food units, and roadside food
vendors; and

WHEREAS, after reviewing the needs of the community, the Town Commission of the Town of Brock,
Texas, has determined it is necessary to exercise the authority granted by Chapter 437 of the Health and Safety
Code for regulation and inspection of food establishments in the Town, including the collection of necessary
fees; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the regulations set forth in this Ordinance are a proper
exercise of the Town's authority and promote the public health and safety of Town residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
BROCK, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Adoption of Texas Food Establishment Rules

A . The Town of Brock, Texas, hereby adopts by reference the provisions of the current rules or
rules as amended by The Executive Commissioner of the Health and Human Services Commission found in 25
Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 228, regarding the regulation of food establishments in Texas applicable
to the Town.

B . De f in i t i ons

i. The words "authorized agent or employee" mean the employees or independent contractors
of the regulatory authority.

i i . The words "food establishment" means a food service establishment, a retail food
store, a temporary food establishment, a mobile food unit or vendor, and/or a roadside food
vendor, unless the context requires otherwise. After July 1, 2026, mobile food units/vendors
will not be regulated by this Ordinance as provided in Section 2.

i i i . The words "state rules" mean the state rules found at 25 Texas Administrative Code,
Chapter 228. These rules are also known as the Texas Food Establishment Rules.

i v . The words "regulatory authority" means the Town of Brock, including any independent
contractors) working under the delegated authority of the Town to enforce this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. Permits and Exemptions

A. A person may not operate a food establishment without a permit issued by the regulatory

Town of Brock, Texas

Ordinance No. 2025-007 Page 1 of 5



authority. Permits are not transferable from one person to another or from one location to another location,
except as otherwise permitted by this Ordinance. A valid permit must be posted in or on every food
establishment regulated by this Ordinance.

B. A food establishment operated solely by a nonprofit organization is exempt from the permitting
requirements of this Ordinance, but is not exempt from compliance with state rules. The regulatory authority
may require any information necessary to determine whether an organization is nonprofit for purposes of this
exemption

C. A "cottage food production operation" as defined by Texas Health and Safety Code Chapter
437 is exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance to the extent the cottage food production operation
qualifies for an exemption under Section 437.0191 and 437.0192 of the Health and Safety Code.

D . On or after July 1, 2026, a "small-scale food business" as defined by Texas Health and Safety
Code Chapter 437 is exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance if the small-scale food business has
obtained a permit from the Department of State Health Services as provided in Section 437.0063 of the
Health and Safety Code.

E . Under Texas Health and Safety Code Section 437.01235, the regulatory authority will not
charge a local fee under the authority of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code if the premises is a food
establishment that has already paid a fee to operate to the regulatory authority under this Ordinance.

F . On or after July 1, 2026, a "mobile food vendor" as defined by Texas Health and Safety Code
Chapter 437B is exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance as provided by that chapter. On or after July
1, 2026, a mobile food vendor must obtain a permit as required by Chapter 437B from the appropriate state
regulatory agency to lawfully operate within the Town's jurisdiction.

SECTION 3. Application for Permit and Fees

A . Any person desiring to operate a food establishment must make a written application for a
permit on forms provided by the regulatory authority. The application must contain the name and address of
each applicant, the location and type of the proposed food establishment and the applicable fee. An incomplete
application will not be accepted. Failure to provide all required information, or falsifying information required
may result in denial or revocation of the permit. Renewals of permits are required on an annual basis and the
same information is required for a renewal permit as for an initial permit.

B . Prior to the approval of an initial permit or the renewal of an existing permit, the regulatory
authority shall inspect the proposed food establishment to determine compliance with state laws and rules. A
food establishment that does not comply with state laws and rules will be denied a permit or the renewal of a
permit.

Town of Brock, Texas
Ordinance No. 2025-007 Page 2 of 5



C .

A n n u a l  P e r m i t
F e e s

F o o d

E s t a b l i s h m e n t

P e r m i t

The following fee schedule applies to permits issued under this Ordinance:

N o t e s

$ 2 4 0

M o b i l e  F o o d
Vendor  Permi t* $ 1 5 0

* I n  a d d i t i o n  t o F o o d
Establishment Permit

requirement; applicable until July
1, 2026.

F o o d
E s t a b l i s h m e n t
Inspect ion Fees

G e n e r a l  I n s p e c t i o n

F e e *

Required
Reinspection Fee*

$ 1 5 0

$ 1 5 0

N o t e s

*Applicable for all permit types,
initial and renewal.

*Applicable if (1) the reinspection
is necessary to cure a violation
t h a t  p r e s e n t s  a  d i r e c t  a n d
s i g n i f i c a n t  r i s k  t o  p u b l i c

health; and (2) not more than one
reinspection fee is charged within
6 0  d a y s  o f  t h e  p r e v i o u s
inspection, unless the entity on
which the fee is imposed failed to
make reasonable efforts to correct
the violation.

SECTION 4. Review of Plans

A . Whenever a food establishment is constructed or extensively remodeled and whenever an
existing structure is converted to use as a food establishment, properly prepared plans and specifications for
such construction, remodeling or conversion shall be submitted to the regulatory authority for review before
work is begun. Extensive remodeling means that 20% or greater of the area of the food establishment is to be
remodeled. The plans and specifications shall indicate the proposed layout, equipment arrangement,
mechanical plans and construction of materials of work areas, and the type and model of proposed fixed
equipment and facilities. The plans and specifications will be approved by the regulatory authority if they
meet the requirements of the rules adopted by this Ordinance. The approved plans and specifications must be

followed in construction, remodeling or conversion.

B .
Failure to follow the approved plans and specifications will result in a permit denial,

Town of Brock, Texas
Ordinance No. 2025-007

Page 3 of 5



suspension, or revocation.

SECTION 5. Suspension of Permit

A . The regulatory authority may, without warning, notice, or hearing suspend any permit to
operate a food establishment if the operation of the food establishment constitutes an imminent hazard to
public health. Suspension is effective upon service of the notice required by Paragraph (5)(B) of this
Ordinance. When a permit is suspended, food operations shall immediately cease. Whenever a permit is
suspended, the holder of the permit shall be afforded an opportunity for a hearing within 20 days of receipt of a
request for a hearing.

B . Whenever a permit is suspended, the holder of the permit or the person in charge shall be
notified in writing that the permit is, upon service of the notice, immediately suspended and that an opportunity
for a hearing will be provided if a written request for a hearing is filed with the regulatory authority by the
holder of the permit within ten days. If no written request for hearing is filed within ten days, the suspension is
sustained. The regulatory authority may end the suspension at any time if reasons for suspension no longer exist.

SECTION 6. Revocation of Permit

A . The regulatory authority may, after providing opportunity for a hearing, revoke a permit for
serious or repeated violations of any of the requirements of these rules or for interference with the regulatory
authority in the performance of its duties. Prior to revocation, the regulatory authority shall notify the holder of
the permit or the person in charge, in writing, of the reason for which the permit is subject to revocation and
that the permit shall be revoked at the end of the ten days following service of such notice unless a written
request for a hearing is filed with the regulatory authority by the holder of the permit within such ten day
period.

B . If no request for hearing is filed within the ten-day period, the revocation of the permit
b e c o m e s  f i n a l .

SECTION 7. Administrative Process

A. A notice as required in these rules is properly served when it is delivered to the holder of the
permit or the person in charge, or when it is sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the
last known address of the holder of the permit. A copy of the notice shall be filed in the records of the
regulatory authority.

B . The hearings provided for in these rules shall be conducted by the regulatory authority at a
time and place designated by it. Based upon the recorded evidence of such hearing, the regulatory authority
shall make final findings, and shall sustain, modify or rescind any notice or order considered in the hearing.
A written report of the hearing decision shall be furnished to the holder of the permit by the regulatory
authority.

S E C T I O N  8 .  R e m e d i e s

A . Any person who violates a provision of these rules and any person who is the permit holder of
or otherwise operates a food service establishment that does not comply with the requirements of these rules
and any responsible officer of that permit holder or those persons shall be fined not more than Two Thousand
Dollars ($2,000.00).

Town of Brock, Texas
Ordinance No. 2025-007 Page 4 of 5



B . The regulatory authority may seek to enjoin violations of these rules.

SECTION 9. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is, for any
reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a
separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 10. All ordinances or portions thereof of the Town in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the Town not in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 11. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and approval and after
publication as may be required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS ON THIS THE 20TH DAY
OF OCTOBER, 2025.

TOWN OF BROCK,  TEXAS

A T T E S T :

Ben Davis, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Melanie Matheus, Town Administrator Alex M. Phipps III, Town Attorney

Town of Brock, Texas
Ordinance No. 2025-007 Page 5 of 5



T O W N  O F  B R O C K
COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

AGENDA ITEM 4.8

T i t l e

R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 2 5 - 0 0 2

I t e m  S u m m a r y
Review and take action to approve Resolution 2025-002 allowing the Town
Administrator to procure and pay expenses related to IT services; and providing an
effective date.

A t t a c h m e n t s

1 .  R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 2 5 - 0 0 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-002

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING
THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR TO PROCURE AND PAY EXPENSES
RELATED TO IT SERVICES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

W H E R E A S ,  t h e  T o w n  o f  B r o c k  h a s  p r e v i o u s l y  a u t h o r i z e d  t h e  T o w n
Secretary/Administrator to perform certain duties and responsibilities related to the maintenance
and upkeep of the Town email address and website; and

WHEREAS, the Town Secretary/Administrator requires specialized support from IT
services to maintain necessary software for the Town's administration and the functionality of
the website and email address; and

WHEREAS, after reviewing relevant qualifications, the Town Secretary/Administrator
has provided the Town Commission with a range of possible services and a recommended
provider that will be cost effective and within the Town's budget.

NOW THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF
THE TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and
correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2. The Town Commission grants the Town Secretary/Administrator the
authority to procure necessary IT services on behalf of the Town, including the authority to
negotiate and enter into service agreements and contracts and to execute any amendments as the
Town Secretary/ Administrator deems necessary.

SECTION 3. The Town Commission grants the Town Secretary/Administrator the
authority to make payments on behalf of the Town for necessary IT services, including any
recurring monthly payments or lump sum payments as required by any service agreement or
contract, in a total amount not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) per fiscal year, paid
from lawful available funds of the Town.

SECTION 4. This resolution is effective from and after its passage and approval.

T o w n  o f  B r o c k ,  T e x a s
Reso lu t i on  No .  2025 -002 Page  1  o f  2



PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Commission of the Town of Brock, Texas,
on October 20, 2025.

TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

Ben Davis, Mayor

A T T E S T : APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Melanie Matheus, Town Administrator Alex M. Phipps III, Town Attorney

Town of Brock, Texas
Resolution No. 2025-002 Page 2 of 2



T O W N  O F  B R O C K

COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING
OCTOBER 20, 2025

A G E N D A  I T E M  4 . 9

T i t l e

R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 2 5 - 0 0 3

I t e m  S u m m a r y
Review and take action to approve Resolution 2025-003 cancelling the general
municipal election to be held on November 4, 2025; declaring the unopposed
candidates for Mayor and City Commission elected to office; directing clerk to post
notice at each polling place; and providing an effective date.

A t t a c h m e n t s
1 .  R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 2 5 - 0 0 3



RESOLUTION NO.  2025 -003

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF BROCK,  TEXAS,  CANCELLING
T H E  G E N E R A L  M U N I C I P A L  E L E C T I O N  T O  B E  H E L D  O N
NOVEMBER 4,  2025;  DECLARING THE UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES
F O R  M A Y O R  A N D  C I T Y  C O M M I S S I O N  E L E C T E D  T O  O F F I C E ;
DIRECTING CLERK TO POST NOTICE AT EACH POLLING PLACE;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Brock has scheduled a November 4, 2025, general municipal
election to elect a mayor and two city commission members; and

WHEREAS, the candidate for mayor and the two candidates for city commission have
each been certified as unopposed; and

WHEREAS, under these circumstances, Section 2.053(a) of the Texas Election Code
directs the Town to cancel the election and hold each candidate elected.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF
THE TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and
cor rec t  and  inco rpora ted  as  i f  f u l l y  se t  fo r th  he re in .

SECTION 2. In accordance with Section 2.053(a) of the Texas Election Code, the
November 4, 2025, general municipal election is hereby cancelled.

SECTION 3. The following candidates have been certified as unopposed and are hereby
elected as follows:

M a y o r Ben Davis

City Commissioner Cody Nelson

City Commissioner Jim Carroll

SECTION 4. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to post a copy of this Resolution at each
polling place that would have been used in the November 4, 2025, general municipal election.

SECTION 5. This resolution is effective from and after its passage and approval.

Town of Brock, Texas
Resolution No. 2025-003 Page 1 of 2



PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Commission of the Town of Brock, Texas,
on October 20, 2025.

TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

Ben Davis, Mayor

A T T E S T : APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Melanie Matheus, Town Administrator Alex M. Phipps III, Town Attorney

T o w n  o f  B r o c k ,  T e x a s
Reso lu t ion  No .  2025-003 Page  2  o f  2



1,

T O W N  O F  B R O C K

COMMISSION MEETING BRIEFING

OCTOBER 20, 2025

T i t l e

R e p o r t s

I t e m  S u m m a r y
Review and take action to approve 2023 Financial Audit draft dated 10/03/2025

A t t a c h m e n t s

2023  F inanc ia l  Aud i t  d ra f t  da ted  10 /3 /2025



T O W N  O F  B R O C K ,  T E X A S

Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, 2023

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5



T O W N  O F  B R O C K ,  T E X A S

Table of  Contents

Year Ended September 30, 2023

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis.

Bas i c  F i nanc ia l  S ta temen ts

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Posit ion.

Statement of Activities.
Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund..
Reconciliation of the Govemmental Fund

Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Posit ion...

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Governmental Fund.

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance of Govermental Fund to the Statement of Activit ies

Notes to the Financial Statements ...

R e q u i r e d  S u p p l e m e n t a r y  I n f o r m a t i o n
Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

General Fund........

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

P a g e

1

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 8

2 5



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission

Town of  Brock,  Texas

O p i n i o n s

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of

the Town of Brock, Texas (the Town) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In  our  op in ion,  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  re fer red to  above present  fa i r l y ,  in  a l l  mater ia l  respects ,  the

r e s p e c t i v e  f i n a n c i a l  p o s i t i o n  o f  t h e  g o v e r n m e n t a l  a c t i v i t i e s  a n d  t h e  m a j o r  f u n d  o f  t h e  T o w n  a s  o f

September 30, 2023, and the respect ive changes in f inancial  posi t ion thereof for the year then ended in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

B a s i s  f o r  O p i n i o n s

We conducted our audit  in accordance with audit ing standards general ly accepted in the United States of

America. Our responsibil i t ies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibil i t ies

for the Audit  of  the Financial  Statements sect ion of our report .  We are required to be independent of the

Town and to meet our other ethical responsibi l i t ies, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements

relat ing to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suff icient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Respons ib i l i t i es  o f  Management  fo r  the  F inanc ia l  S ta tements

Managemen t  i s  respons ib le  fo r  t he  p repa ra t i on  and  fa i r  p resen ta t i on  o f  t he  f i nanc ia l  s ta temen ts  i n

accordance with accounting pr inciples general ly accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the des ign ,  imp lementa t ion ,  and main tenance o f  in te rna l  cont ro l  re levant  to  the  prepara t ion  and fa i r

presentat ion of  f inancia l  s tatements that  are f ree f rom mater ia l  misstatement,  whether due to f raud or

e r ro r .

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
Aud i to r ' s  Respons ib i l i t i es  fo r  the  Aud i t  o f  the  F inanc ia l  S ta tements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance

and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

? Exercise professional  judgment and maintain professional  skept ic ism throughout the audi t .

? Ident i fy and assess the r isks of  mater ial  misstatement of  the f inancial  statements,  whether due to

f r a u d  o r  e r r o r ,  a n d  d e s i g n  a n d  p e r f o r m  a u d i t  p r o c e d u r e s  r e s p o n s i v e  t o  t h o s e  r i s k s .  S u c h

procedures include examining, on a test basis,  evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

in the f inancial statements.

?  O b t a i n  a n  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  o f  i n t e r n a l  c o n t r o l  r e l e v a n t  t o  t h e  a u d i t  i n  o r d e r  t o  d e s i g n  a u d i t

procedures that  are appropr iate in  the c i rcumstances,  but  not  for  the purpose of  expressing an

op in ion  on  the  e f fec t i veness  o f  the  Town 's  in te rna l  con t ro l .  Accord ing ly ,  no  such  op in ion  i s

exp ressed .

? Evaluate the appropr ia teness o f  account ing po l ic ies  used and the reasonableness of  s ign i f icant

account ing est imates made by management,  as wel l  as evaluate the overal l  presentat ion of  the

f inancial  statements.

? Conclude whether ,  in  our  judgment ,  there are condi t ions or  events,  considered in  the aggregate,

t ha t  r a i se  subs tan t i a l  doub t  abou t  t he  Town ' s  ab i l i t y  t o  con t i nue  as  a  go ing  conce rn  f o r  a

reasonable per iod of  t ime.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information

and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the l imited

procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Granbury, Texas
October 2 0 2 5



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N

A N D  A N A L Y S I S



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

I N T R O D U C T I O N

As management  o f  the Town of  Brock Texas,  we of fer  readers o f  the Town's  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  th is
narrative overview and analysis of the f inancial activit ies of the Town for the f iscal year ended September

30, 2023. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A") has been designed to [1] assist readers and interested
parties in focusing on significant financial issues [2] provide an overview of the Town's financial activity,
[3] identify changes in the Town's financial position, including its abil ity to address the next and
subsequent years challenges, [4] identify material deviations from the approved budgets adopted by the
Town Commission (those charged with governance), and [5] identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Because MD&A focuses on the current  year 's  act iv i ty ,  resul t ing changes and current ly  known facts,  you
are  encouraged to  read i t  in  con junc t ion  w i th  the  bas ic  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  inc lud ing  notes  there to ,
required supplemental  in format ion,  and other supplementary data provided below. Certa in comparat ive
in format ion between the current  f isca l  year  and the pr ior  f isca l  year  is  requi red to  be presented in  the
M D & A . H o w e v e r ,  b e c a u s e  t h i s  i s  t h e  f i r s t  y e a r  o f  f i n a n c i a l  r e p o r t i n g  f o r  t h e  T o w n ,  c o m p a r a t i v e
information for the government-wide statement of act iv i t ies and the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in  fund ba lance -  governmenta l  fund does not  ex is t .  Subsequent  repor ts  wi l l  inc lude th is

comparat ive information.

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

? The assets  o f  the Town exceeded i ts  l iab i l i t ies  a t  the c lose for  the most  recent  year  by  $1,511,867

(ne t  pos i t i on )  fo r  the  year  repor ted .  Th is  compares  to  the  p rev ious  year  when  asse ts  exceeded

l iabi l i t ies by $1,402,672.

T h e  T o w n ' s  t o t a l  n e t  p o s i t i o n  i n c r e a s e d  b y  $ 1 0 9 , 1 9 5  f o r  t h e  y e a r  r e p o r t e d .

? As of the close of the current year, the Town's governmental fund reported ending fund balance of
$917,856. This compares to the prior ending fund balance of $574,959.

O v e r v i e w  o f  t h e  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial
statements. The Town's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business. They present the picture of the Town from an economic resources measurement focus using
the accrual basis of accounting. There are two government-wide statements: the statement of net
position and the statement of activities.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between them presented as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed
during the most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes. The governmental activities of the Town include general goverment and streets.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related

legal requirements. The Town has only one governmental fund.

? Governmental fund - The Town's services are reported in a governmental fund, which focuses on
how money flows into and out of the fund and the balance left at the end of the year that are
available for spending. This fund is reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the Town's programs.

? The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided on page 25 for the fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 18-23 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents a budgetary comparison schedule, which can be found on page 25 of this report.



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
GOVERNMENT-WIDE  F INANCIAL  ANALYSIS

The fol lowing table reflects the condensed statements of net posit ion as of September 30:

2 0 2 3 2 0 2 2

Current Assets

Capital  Assets
T o t a l  A s s e t s

§ 9 2 9 , 6 3 8  $

5 9 4 . 0 1 1

1 . 5 2 3 . 6 4 9

7 1 9 , 5 2 0
6 9 3 , 0 4 8

1 , 4 1 2 , 5 6 8

Current Liabilities
Total Liabil i t ies

1 1 , 7 8 2

1 1 , 7 8 2

9 , 8 9 6

9 , 8 9 6

Net Position
Net Investment

in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Posit ion$

594,011
917,856

1 , 5 1 1 , 8 6 7  $

693,048
709,624

1 , 4 0 2 , 6 7 2

As of both September 30, 2023 and 2022, the Town's total assets were primarily comprised of cash and
cash equivalents (55% and 38% of total assets, respectively) and capital assets (39% and 49% of total
assets, respectively).The Town's net position increased $109,195 (8%) during the fiscal year to a
balance of $1,511,867. $594,011 (or approximately 39% of the Town's net posit ion ref lects i ts
investment in capital assets (streets). Given the nature of those assets, they are not available for future
spending. $917,856 (or approximately 61%) of the Town's net position is unrestricted and may be used to
meet the government's ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

The  f o l l ow ing  t ab le  p rov i des  a  summary  o f  t he  Town ' s  changes  i n  ne t  pos i t i on  f o r  t he  yea r  ended

September 30,  2023:

Genera l  Revenues

Sales and use taxes

Franchise taxes

Mixed beverage taxes

Miscel laneous

309,044
99,721
3,300
2,351

414,416

E x p e n s e s

General government

S t ree t s

Change in net posit ion

Net posit ion, beginning

Net position, ending §

1 1 6 , 2 0 8
1 8 9 , 0 1 3

3 0 5 , 2 2 1

109, 195
1,402,672

1 , 5 1 1 , 8 6 7



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
For the year ended September 30, 2023, sales and use taxes comprised 74.6% of total revenues and
general government comprised 56.4% of total expenses. The government's net position increased by
$109,195 during the fiscal year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

The focus of the Town's governmental fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing
requirements; in particular, unassigned fund balance may serve a measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The Town's governmental fund balance at September 30, 2023 and 2022 totaled $917,856 and
$574,959, respectively, of which 99.8% and 100%, respectively, was unassigned. The governmental
fund reported total assets of $929,638 and $719,520 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
primary reason for the increase in assets was an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $307,337,
which was largely driven by collection during the fiscal year of franchise fees related to fiscal years 2021
and 2022. Total liabilities at September 30, 2023, increased over the balance at September 30, 2022, by
$1,886 or 19.1%. While the Town reported no deferred inflows of resources at September 30, 2023, the
balance of deferred inflows of resources at September 30, 2022 was $134,665. The entirety of this
balance related to franchise fees receivable at September 30, 2022 that were not considered to be
available because they were not collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year.

For the year ended September 30, 2023, sales and use taxes comprised 56.3% of total revenues and
general government comprised 56.4% of total expenditures. Fund balance increased by $342,897 during
the year ended September 30, 2023.

G E N E R A L  F U N D  B U D G E T A R Y  H I G H L I G H T S

Actual general fund revenues were more than budgeted revenues by $220,581 (67.1%) primarily due to
franchise fees revenues exceeding budget by $154,386 during the year. Actual general fund
expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $46,816 (18.5%) primarily because actual
expenditures for streets were less than the budgeted amount by $40,024 during the year.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Town's only capital asset is streets. The only capital asset activity during the year ended September
30, 2023, was depreciation expense of $99,037.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Town had no long-term debt outstanding during the year ended September 30, 2023.



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR 'S  BUDGETS

The original fiscal year 2024 general fund budgeted revenues are $400,500 and budgeted expenditures
are $340,550. The majority of the anticipated decrease in revenues relates to franchise fees, as the fiscal
year 2023 franchise fees revenue included amounts related to prior periods that were not recognizable in
those prior periods because the amounts were not available to pay liabilities of those periods. A portion of
the increase in anticipated expenditures relates to an update of the Town's comprehensive plan, including
updating Town maps and zoning ordinances.

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S  F INANCIAL  MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Town's f inances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional
information, contact the Town Clerk, 2451 FM 1189, Ste. B, Brock, Texas 76087.



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



TOWN OF BROCK,  TEXAS

Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2023

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

A S S E T S :

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable

Prepaid expenses

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

To ta l  Asse ts

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Pr imary  Government

Governmenta l

A c t i v i t i e s

842,230
85,308
2,100

594.011
1.523,649

1 1 . 7 8 2

1 1 , 7 8 2

5 9 4 , 0 1 1
9 1 7 . 8 5 6

1 . 5 1 1 , 8 6 7

T h e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  a r e  a n  i n t e g r a l  p a r t  o f  t h i s  s t a t e m e n t .
1 1



T O W N  O F  B R O C K ,  T E X A S

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

Funct ions/Programs

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Governmental Activit ies:

General  government

St ree ts

Total  Primary Government

Expenses

Program Revenues

Fines,  Fees,  and

Charges for
Serv ices

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in  Net

P r i m a r y  G o v e r n m e n t

Governmental

Ac t iv i t ies

$  1 1 6 , 2 0 8

189 .013

$  3 0 5 , 2 2 1

§

§

General revenues:

Sales and use taxes
Franchise fees
Mixed beverage taxes
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - Beginning

Net position - Ending

$

( 1 1 6 , 2 0 8 )

(189 ,013 )

( 3 0 5 , 2 2 1 )

$

309 ,044
99,721
3,300
2,351

414,416

109,195

1,402,672

1,511,867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
1 2



TOWN OF BROCK,  TEXAS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund
September 30, 2023

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

A S S E T S :
Cash and equivalents
Taxes receivable

Prepaid expendi tures

To ta l  Asse ts

L I A B I L I T I E S :
Accounts payable

Tota l  L iab i l i t ies

FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

G e n e r a l
F u n d

8 4 2 , 2 3 0

85 ,308
2 , 1 0 0

9 2 9 . 6 3 8

$ 1 1 . 7 8 2
11 ,782

2 , 1 0 0
9 1 5 . 7 5 6

9 1 7 , 8 5 6

9 2 9 , 6 3 8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
1 3



TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

Reconc i l i a t ion  o f  the  Governmenta l  Fund  Ba lance  Sheet

t o  t he  S ta temen t  o f  Ne t  Pos i t i on

S e p t e m b e r  3 0 ,  2 0 2 3

Total fund balance - governmental fund balance sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position

are dif ferent because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the governmental fund balance sheet.

Net position of governmental activities

T h e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  a r e  a n  i n t e g r a l  p a r t  o f  t h i s  s t a t e m e n t .
1 4

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

§  9 1 7 , 8 5 6

5 9 4 , 0 1 1

$  1 , 5 1 1 , 8 6 7



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

R E V E N U E

S a l e s  a n d  u s e  t a x

F r a n c h i s e  f e e s

M i x e d  b e v e r a g e  t a x

M i s c e l l a n e o u s

T o t a l  r e v e n u e s

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General  govemment

S t ree t s

Total expenditures

E x c e s s  o f  R e v e n u e s

O v e r  E x p e n d i t u r e s

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Genera l

F u n d

$  3 0 9 , 0 4 4

234,386
3,300

2,351

549,081

116,208

89,976

206, 184

342,897

574,959

§ 917 ,856

T h e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  n o t e s  a r e  a n  i n t e g r a l  p a r t  o f  t h i s  s t a t e m e n t .
1 5



Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Fund

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Net change in fund balance - total governmental fund

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities and
does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation
expense is not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund.

Certain revenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental fund.

Change in net position of governmental activities S

3 4 2 , 8 9 7

( 9 9 , 0 3 7 )

( 1 3 4 , 6 6 5 )

1 0 9 . 1 9 5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
1 6



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



D R A F T
TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS

Notes to the Financial Statements 1 0 / 3 / 2 5
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of  Brock,  Texas ( the Town)  was incorporated by a  major i ty  vote  on November  8 ,  2016 as a

Class C general  law munic ipal i ty  under the provis ions of  Chapter 8 Sect ion 8.001 et .  seq. of  the Texas
L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e .  T h e  T o w n  i s  a n  i n d e p e n d e n t  p o l i t i c a l  s u b d i v i s i o n  o f  t h e  S t a t e  o f  T e x a s

governed by an elected commission and a mayor and is considered a primary government.

The account ing pol ic ies of  the Town conform to account ing pr inc ip les general ly  accepted in the Uni ted
S ta tes  o f  Amer i ca  (GAP)  app l i cab le  to  s ta te  and  loca l  gove rnmen ts .  Genera l  accep ted  accoun t ing

pr inc ip les  for  loca l  governments  inc lude those pr inc ip les  prescr ibed by the Governmenta l  Account ing
Standards Board (GASB) and the Amer ican Inst i tu te of  Cert i f ied Publ ic  Accountants in  the publ icat ion
ent i t led Audi ts  of  State and Local  Governmental  Uni ts .  The s igni f icant  account ing pol ic ies of  the Town

are descr ibed below:

A .  T h e  R e p o r t i n g  E n t i t y

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements include the primary government and organizations for which the primary government is
f inancial ly accountable and other organizations for which the nature and signif icance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability.A
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It is
also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of
an organization's government body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is
a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be financially accountable for
governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.

A primary government has the abil i ty to impose its wil l  on an organization if i t  can signif icantly influence

t h e  p r o g r a m s ,  p r o j e c t s ,  o r  a c t i v i t i e s  o f ,  o r  t h e  l e v e l  o f  s e r v i c e s  p e r f o r m e d  o r  p r o v i d e d  b y ,  t h e
organization. A f inancial benefit or burden relationship exists if  the primary government (a) is entit led to

the organization's resources; (b) is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to f inance
the def ic i ts of,  or provide f inancial  support  to,  the organizat ion; or (c) is obl igated in some manner for

the debt of  the organizat ion.

Some organizat ions are included as component units because of the f iscal dependency on the pr imary
government. An organization is f iscal ly dependent on the primary government i f  i t  is unable to adopt i ts
budge t ,  l e vy  t axes ,  se t  r a t es  o r  cha rges ,  o r  i s sue  bonded  deb t  w i t hou t  app rova l  by  t he  p r ima ry

gove rnmen t .

T h e  T o w n  h a s  n o  c o m p o n e n t  u n i t .

1 8



T O W N  O F  B R O C K ,  T E X A S
N o t e s  t o  t h e  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B .  B a s i s  o f  P r e s e n t a t i o n

G o v e r n m e n t - w i d e  S t a t e m e n t s :

The statement of net position and the statement of activit ies include the financial activit ies of the overall
government. Governmental act ivi t ies general ly are f inanced through sales and use taxes and franchise
f e e s .

The statement of activities presents a comparison between each function of the Town's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The Town does not allocate indirect expenses
in the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

F u n d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s :

The fund f inancial statements provide information about the Town's fund. There were no other funds to

be aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The Town reports the following major Governmental fund:

The Genera l  Fund is  the  Town 's  pr imary  opera t ing  fund.  Th is  fund is  used to  account  fo r  a l l
f inancial  resources not reported in other funds. Al l  general  tax revenues and other receipts that
are not restr icted by law or contractual  agreement to some other fund are accounted for  in th is

fund. General  operat ing expenditures, f ixed charges and capital  improvement costs that are not
paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current f inancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting.

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

1 9



TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS
N o t e s  t o  t h e  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.  Budgetary  Contro l

The annual budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
the general fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The  Town  Commiss i on  f o l l ows  t hese  p rocedu res  i n  es tab l i sh i ng  budge ta r y  da ta  r e f l ec ted  i n  t he
f inancial  statements:

a . Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, proposed operating budget is submitted for the fiscal
year commencing the fol lowing October 1.The operat ing budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them for the general fund.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
c. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.
d. The budget may be amended with the approval of the Town Commission.
e. Budgetary control is maintained at the line item level, subject to adjustments permitted as

described above.

E .  C a s h  a n d  E q u i v a l e n t s

High ly  l iqu id  investments  are cons idered to  be cash equiva lents  i f  they have an or ig ina l  matur i ty  o f

three months or less when purchased

F .  C a p i t a l  A s s e t s

Capi ta l  assets  purchased or  const ruc ted are  repor ted a t  cost  or  es t imated h is tor ica l  cost .  Donated

capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or material ly extend assets' l ives are

not capital ized. Public domain ("infrastructure") general f ixed assets consisting of certain improvements
o ther  than bu i ld ings ,  inc lud ing  roads ,  b r idges ,  curbs  and gu t te rs ,  s t ree ts  and s idewalks ,  d ra inage

systems, and l ighting systems, are capitalized along with other capital assets

Capi ta l  assets  are  def ined by  the Town as assets  w i th  an ind iv idua l  cost  o f  $1,000 or  more and an
est imated useful  l i fe in excess of one year.  Depreciat ion has been provided over the est imated useful

l ives using the straight l ine method. The Town has estimated the useful l i fe of streets to be 30 years.

G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town had no material deferred
outflows of resources as of September 30, 2023.

In  add i t ion  to  l iab i l i t ies ,  the  s ta tement  o f  ne t  pos i t ion  w i l l  somet imes repor t  a  separa te  sec t ion  fo r
deferred inflows of resources. This separate f inancial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,

represents an acquisi t ion of net posit ion that appl ies to a future periods) and so wi l l  not be recognized
as  an  in f low o f  resources  ( revenue)  un t i l  t ha t  t ime .T h e  T o w n  h a d  n o  m a t e r i a l  d e f e r r e d  i n f l o w s  o f

resources as of  September 30,  2023.

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

2 0



TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS
Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Fund Balance and Net Position

The  gove rnmen ta l  f und  f i nanc ia l  s ta temen ts  p resen t  f und  ba lances  based  on  c lass i f i ca t i ons  tha t
compr i se  a  h i e ra r chy  t ha t  i s  based  p r ima r i l y  on  t he  ex ten t  t o  wh i ch  t he  Town  i s  bound  t o  hono r
constra ints  on the speci f ic  purposes for  which amounts in  the respect ive governmenta l  funds can be

spent. The classif ications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

? Non-spendable :  Th is  c lass i f ica t ion inc ludes amounts  that  cannot  be spent  because they are
either (a) not in the spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. Non spendable i tems are not expected to be converted to cash or are not expected to be

converted to cash within the next year.  Al l  amounts reported by the Town as nonspendable at

September 30, 2023, are nonspendable in form (prepaid expenditures).
? Restr icted: This classif icat ion includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the

use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or

regula t ions of  o ther  governments ,  or  (b)  imposed by law through const i tu t iona l  prov is ions or

enabl ing legis lat ion.
? Commit ted:  This  c lass i f icat ion inc ludes amounts that  can be used only  for  speci f ic  purposes

pursuan t  to  cons t ra in ts  imposed by  board  reso lu t ion  o f  the  Town Commiss ion ,  the  Town 's

h ighes t  l eve l  o f  dec i s i on  mak ing  au tho r i t y .  These  amoun ts  canno t  be  used  fo r  any  o the r
purpose un less  the  Town Commiss ion  removes or  changes the  spec i f ied  use  by  tak ing  the

s a m e  t y p e  o f  a c t i o n  t h a t  w a s  e m p l o y e d  w h e n  t h e  f u n d s  w e r e  i n i t i a l l y  c o m m i t t e d .  T h i s
classi f icat ion also inc ludes contractual  obl igat ions to the extent  that  exist ing resources have
been specif ically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

? Assigned: This classi f icat ion includes amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be

used  f o r  a  spec i f i c  pu rpose  bu t  a re  ne i t he r  r es t r i c t ed  no r  commi t t ed .  Th i s  i n t en t  can  be

expressed by the Town Commission.
? Unassigned:  This c lassi f icat ion inc ludes the residual  fund balance for  the General  Fund.  The

u n a s s i g n e d  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  a l s o  i n c l u d e s  n e g a t i v e  r e s i d u a l  f u n d  b a l a n c e  o f  a n y  o t h e r
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsett ing of assigned fund balance amounts.

In circumstances where expenditure is to be made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, the order in which resources will be extended is as follows:
restricted fund balance, followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and lastly
unassigned fund balance. Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those
assets, and adding back unspent proceeds. Net position is reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling legislations adopted by the Town or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. In
circumstances where an expense is to be made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple net position classifications, restricted position will be fully utilized first followed by unrestricted
as necessary.

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

2 1



TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS
N o t e s  t o  t h e  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I .  U s e  o f  E s t i m a t e s

The preparat ion of  f inancial  statements in conformity wi th account ing pr inciples general ly accepted in
the United States of  America requires management to make est imates and assumptions that af fect the
reported amounts of assets and l iabi l i t ies and disclosure of contingent assets and l iabi l i t ies at the date

of  the f inancia l  s tatements and the repor ted amounts of  revenues and expenses dur ing the repor t ing
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

J .  Imp lemen ta t i on  o f  New  Accoun t i ng  S tanda rd

In 2023, the Town implemented GAS Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements (SBITAs. The objective of this statement is to better meet the needs of financial
statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for SBITAs by governments. This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset
- an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria
for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4)
requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are
based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.

The Town did not have any SBITAs that met the criteria of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements, for fiscal year 2023.

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS

Cash and equivalents as of September 30, 2023 consist entirely of cash deposits totaling $842,230. The
Town does not have formal policies that limit its allowable deposits or investments or address the specific
types of risk to which the Town is exposed. Deposits are subject to the following risk:

Custodial  Credit  Risk

Custod ia l  c red i t  r i sk  fo r  depos i ts  i s  the  r i sk  tha t ,  in  the  event  o f  the  fa i lu re  o f  a  depos i to ry  f inanc ia l

inst i tut ion,  a government wi l l  not  be able to recover i ts  deposi ts or  wi l l  not  be able to recover col lateral
securit ies that are in the possession of an outside party. The Public Funds Investment Act requires that a

financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securit ies in an
und i v i ded  co l l a te ra l  poo l  he ld  by  a  depos i t o r y  regu la ted  unde r  s ta te  l aw  (un less  so  wa i ved  by  t he

governmenta l  un i t ) .

At September 30, 2023, both the carrying amount of the Town's cash on hand and deposits and the bank
balance were $842,230. $250,000 of the bank balance was covered by depository insurance under the
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the remaining $592,230 was covered by collateral
held in the pledging bank's trust department in the Town's name.

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

2 2



TOWN OF BROCK, TEXAS
N o t e s  t o  t h e  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5
N O T E  3 .  C A P I T A L  A S S E T S

Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2023, is as follows:

B e g i n n i n g

Ba lance

A d d i t i o n s

C o m p l e t i o n s

R e f i r e m e n t s /

A d j u s t m e n t s

E n d i n g

Balance

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated
Streets

Total capital assets being depreciated

4 . 4 2 1 . 0 9 1

4 . 4 2 1 . 0 9 1

3 . 4.421,091
4.421.091

Accumulated depreciat ion
S t r e e t s

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Govermental activties capital assets, net

3 ,728.043

3 , 7 2 8 , 0 4 3

6 9 3 . 0 4 8

9 9  0 3 7

9 9 . 0 3 7

3.827.080

3.827.080

( 9 9 . 0 3 7 )

693.048 (99.037) §

5 9 4 , 0 1 1

5 9 4 . 0 1 1

NOTE 4. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Town insures al l  major categories of r isk
comparable to that of the prior year with the Texas Municipal League. The Town is responsible only to

the extent of premiums paid and contr ibut ions made to Texas Municipal League. There have been no
signif icant changes in insurance coverage as compared to last year and sett lements have not exceeded

coverage in each of the past three f iscal years.

NOTE 5. CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE

A significant source of revenues for the Town is franchise fees collected from an electric cooperative.
Any reduction of these revenues could adversely affect the Town's ability to operate effectively.

N O T E  6 .  C O M M I T M E N T

The Town has entered into a lease agreement for  of f ice space under which i t  is  obl igated to pay rent of
$700 per month through the expirat ion date of  September 30,  2025.  The Town may renew the lease for

addi t ional  one-year terms.

NOTE 7. AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUNDS

Under two beneficiary agreements effective August 15, 2023, the Town was allocated a total of $750,000
of American Plan Rescue Act (ARPA) funds that had been allocated to Parker County. Under the
agreements, the funds are to be used exclusively for the purpose of water and wastewater master
planning support during the period April 10, 2023 through April 10, 2024; subsequent to September 30,
2023, this period was extended to September 30, 2026. Any unused funds are subject to reallocation by
Parker County unless the Town requests and receives an extension of time from Parker County. Through
September 30, 2023, the Town had not incurred any qualifying expenditures under this agreement.
During the period October 1, 2023 through the date that these financial statements were available to be
issued. the Town had incurred qualifying expenditures under the agreements totaling approximately
$713,000.

As of September 30, 2023, the Town had a contractual commitment of $500,000 for engineering services
to be performed under its beneficiary agreement with Parker County and funded through the related
ARPA allocation.

2 3



D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

R E Q U I R E D  S U P P L E M E N T A R Y  I N F O R M A T I O N



T O W N  O F  B R O C K ,  T E X A S

General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For  the Year  Ended September  30,  2023

R E V E N U E

S a l e s  a n d  u s e  t a x

F r a n c h i s e  f e e s

O t h e r

T o t a l  r e v e n u e s

E X P E N D I T U R E S
Curren t :

Genera l  government
Administrat ive & off ice expenses
Elect ion

I n s u r a n c e
Legal and professional fees

St ree ts

Tota l  expendi tures
E x c e s s  ( D e f i c i e n c y )  o f  R e v e n u e s

Over  (Unde r )  Expend i t u res

Ne t  Change  i n  Fund  Ba lance

F u n d  B a l a n c e  -  B e g i n n i n g

Fund  Ba lance  -  End ing

Budgeted Amounts
O r i g i n a l

2 4 5 . 0 0 0

8 0 . 0 0 0

3 . 5 0 0

3 2 8 . 5 0 0

F i n a l

$ 2 4 5 . 0 0 0

8 0 . 0 0 0

3 . 5 0 0

3 2 8 . 5 0 0

A c t u a l

3 0 9 . 0 4 4

2 3 4 , 3 8 6
5 . 6 5 1

5 4 9 , 0 8 1

5 0 , 0 0 0
8 . 0 0 0
5 . 0 0 0

60.000
1 3 0 . 0 0 0

2 5 3 , 0 0 0

7 5 . 5 0 0

7 5 , 5 0 0

5 7 4 , 9 5 9

650 .459 §

50 ,000
8 , 0 0 0

5 , 0 0 0
60 ,000

1 3 0 . 0 0 0

2 5 3 , 0 0 0

7 5 . 5 0 0

7 5 . 5 0 0

5 7 4 , 9 5 9

6 5 0 . 4 5 9

4 3 , 7 6 4

2 , 4 5 5

6 9 . 9 8 9

8 9 . 9 7 6

2 0 6 , 1 8 4

3 4 2 , 8 9 7

3 4 2 . 8 9 7

5 7 4 . 9 5 9

9 1 7 , 8 5 6

2 5

D R A F T

1 0 / 3 / 2 5

V a r i a n c e  w i t h

F i n a l  B u d g e t

P o s i t i v e

( N e g a t i v e

6 4 . 0 4 4

154 .386

2 . 1 5 1
2 2 0 , 5 8 1

6 , 2 3 6
8 , 0 0 0

2 , 5 4 5
( 9 , 9 8 9 )
4 0 . 0 2 4

4 6 , 8 1 6

2 6 7 , 3 9 7

2 6 7 , 3 9 7

-

267,397


